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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, it is
my pleasure to present to you the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Over the past 10 years, the emphasis on medical innovations and
reinforcing our industry position have always been our interest.
Therefore, we have widened the variety of our products, introduced
new treatment devices as well as provided diversified and premium
treatment services to our customers. Our efforts here have laid a solid
foundation for our business to undertake all the challenges. Despite
the influence of social events in Hong Kong and the COVID-19
pandemic during the year, we still managed to record a revenue
inflow which grew 14.1% this year compared with last year to
approximately HK$176.5 million.

Geographically, we have three medical aesthetic centres at trendy
and convenient locations in Hong Kong readily accessible to
customers from different locations and hence further strengthening
our customer base. Meanwhile, we also seek to raise our exposure
by different means. Moreover, we have successfully signed a
partnership agreement with We Doctor Holdings Limited. It is our
pleasure to cooperate with the leading technology-enabled healthcare
solutions platform in China, enabling us to launch our products on
WeDoctor’s platform and reach out to millions of potential customers
in mainland China. It marks a significant breakthrough for us. We
intend to continue to expand our network of stores and secure new
clientele to further expand our market share.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

Looking forward, although the business environment is expected to
be challenging, we remain optimistic about the prospects of the
industry given the previously rising demand for medical aesthetic
services. The COVID-19 pandemic has hit hard various sectors in the
second quarter of 2020, and the medical aesthetic industry was no
exception. All beauty parlours were closed for 28 days from 10 April
2020 to 7 May 2020 as required by the Hong Kong government.
Although the Group’s main services and treatments were not
associated with those procedures defined to be provided by beauty
parlours under the Amendment Regulation, we place the health and
safety of our customers and staff as our highest priority. Hence, we
have made a tough decision to close all of our treatment centres
during this period as well. We have also implemented stringent
hygiene policies and procedures at our treatment centres to ensure
the safety of our staff and customers, as well as strengthening
customer confidence.

Meanwhile, we have been proactively seeking diversification in our
business. For instance, we have recently cooperated with a Swiss
skincare research team to launch a new anti-aging skincare product
line, XOVE. We are striving to expand our share in the skincare
product market, which could create synergies with our treatment
services and strengthen our competitive advantage. Building on our
solid foundation, the experienced management team and professional
medical team, we are confident we can maintain our business growth
and create long-term value for our shareholders.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
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Acknowledgements Byt

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank shareholders and our ZRRARBRKEEZS [ ORHRE - RPWES
business partners, suppliers and customers for their continuous ¢ - HEFLREPH AREBNIFE LIS - K
support to the Group. My heartfelt appreciation also goes to our AJERBRFINEEBLEEXETINBE—F
management and professional colleagues for their dedication and #AREBEFREEAOTNMES HNEETMBUAR

valuable contributions to the Group in the past year. DEE -

Lai Ka Yee Gigi EYImZ+

Chairlady & Chief Executive Officer FEFITHABH

Hong Kong, 15 June 2020 BB 20206 H15H

2020 3 / SYPEBREBERDE 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Business Review

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year Under Review”), the
Group’s revenue increased by HK$21.8 million, or 14.1%, to
HK$176.5 million when compared with that of the previous year. The
gain was mainly attributable to the increase in promotional campaigns
in different marketing channels such as the telemarketing strategy
and active promotional campaigns on various social media platforms,
which raised customer awareness of the “CosMax” & “VITAE by
CosMax” brand and secured more customers. Profit for the Year
Under Review amounted to HK$13.6 million (2019: HK$21.8 million).
The drop was mainly due to increment in staff costs.

Miricor is currently operating three “CosMax” brand medical aesthetic
centres at trendy and convenient locations in Causeway Bay, Central
District and Tsim Sha Tsui. The Causeway Bay Centre is in a duplex
unit and has 30 treatment rooms that occupy 12,156 sq ft overall.
The Tsim Sha Tsui centre and Central centre have areas of 6,050 sq
ft and 3,092 sq ft, with 17 and 9 treatment rooms respectively. The
centres are able to attract a broad range of customers and effectively
bolster its customer base given their prime locations.

With a new collective standard of “Healthy beauty”, the Group has
unveiled a new beauty brand “VITAE by CosMax” during the Year
Under Review. Mrs. Gigi Ma, founder of the brand, has emphasised
the principle “Inner health realises external beauty” and established
the brand, initiating a new category in the medical aesthetic industry.
The philosophy of the brand is to balance beauty, maintain a perfect
balance between beauty and health, and emanate beauty from within.
It has thus inspired the concept of VITAE — Wellness Beauty medical
aesthetic services. VITAE is advancing a new trend in beauty,
holistically restoring the skin and body from the inside out, and offers
modern women a healthy vitality and an enduring youthful bloom.
VITAE — Wellness Beauty service is designated to provide a series of
skincare solutions for youthful skin, firming lines, intimate repair and
functional health, including FACE Lift & Plump, BODY Fit & Firm,
FEMME CARE Strengthen & Tighten and SUPPLEMENT. The Group
is confident it can further widen its customer base leveraging the new
concept of the brand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRD

Business Review (Continued)

The Group strives to provide high quality and top-notch customer
services by embracing the latest technologies. In order to ensure
customers enjoy safe and outstanding quality experiences, all the
devices and procedures have been clinically evaluated by doctors or
clinical training team before being procured and installed. The Group
has over 140 treatment devices for offering diversify treatment
procedures as of 31 March 2020. It also offers quality skincare
products that complement its treatments for customers to realise
optimum effectiveness. The new skincare product line XOVE has
recently been launched, the result of the hard work of the dedicated
Swiss skincare research team. The team harnesses the power of a
active ingredient, “W-TruComplex,” which employs “Bioliquefaction
Technology” for obtaining 100% complete phytocomplexes from
white truffle in a highly bioavailable form. “W-TruComplex” is an
ingredient that can penetrate the skin deeply as it modulates gene
expression to offer multiple anti-aging effects, strengthening the skin
protective layer in order to restore the youthfulness of the skin.

Miricor has successfully launched its products on WeDoctor’s
platform, a leading technology-enabled healthcare solutions platform
in China, after signing a partnership agreement with We Doctor
Holdings Limited during the Year Under Review. Pursuant to this
partnership, customers from mainland China are able to make
appointments for Miricor’'s treatment services through its platform.
This partnership marked a major step forward in expanding the
Group’s business presence in mainland China’s market and further
enlarging its customer base.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Any outbreak of contagious diseases or epidemics in the People’s
Republic of China, Hong Kong and elsewhere, such as the COVID-19
outbreak may result in widespread health crisis that could result in the
temporary closure of our medical aesthetic centres and significantly
disrupt our business operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review

Revenue

Our revenue is mainly derived from the provision of medical aesthetic
services, which include treatment services, consultation services, as
well as the prescription and dispensing of medical products. In
addition, we sell skin care products to our clients.

Our Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$176.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2020, representing an increase of
approximately HK$21.8 million or 14.1% as compared with HK$154.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2019. The increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in promotional campaigns in different
marketing channels, such as the telemarketing strategy and active
promotional campaigns on various social media platforms, which
raised consumer awareness of the “CosMax” brand, and secured
more customers.

Set forth below is a breakdown of our total revenue during the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019:

81755 Bl R
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R E ERARABEXTRY  2F
BRRT - HARE  UREEERESRE
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HE2020F3H3THIEFE  AEEMKE
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For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIALEE

2020 2019

HK$’000 % HK$’000 %

FHET Botk FHT Aotk

Treatment services BRE RS 146,165 82.8 138,960 89.8

Medical consultation services Z2& 4 AR5 138 0.1 266 0.2

Prescription and dispensing of && & & &z /7 M Bir %

medical products 1,154 0.6 1,648 1.1

Skin care products EEEmMm 18,636 10.6 10,485 6.8
Revenue recognised from REARFHAEMNBERZERD

unutilised prepaid packages 2 MRS 10,436 5.9 3,336 2.1

Total revenue s 176,529 100.0 154,695 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Financial Review (Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

@

(1)

(iii)

Revenue from treatment services

During the year ended 31 March 2020, most of our revenue
was derived from treatment services. Revenue from treatment
services amounted to HK$146.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2020 and HK$139.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2019, representing 82.8% and 89.8% of our total revenue,
respectively.

Revenue from consultation services

First-time clients are required to attend medical consultation
with our doctors, during which our doctors will perform
examination as well as assess and/or make a diagnosis on the
client’s skin conditions and recommend suitable treatment
services accordingly based on their specific conditions, needs
and concerns. After the first visit, follow up consultation
sessions will also be provided when appropriate to keep track
of clients’ conditions.

Revenue from consultation services amounted to HK$0.1
million for the year ended 31 March 2020 and HK$0.3 million
for the year ended 31 March 2019, representing 0.1% and
0.2% of our total revenue, respectively.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical
products

Based on clients’ skin conditions, their specific needs and
requirements, our doctors may prescribe medication and/or
recommend certain skin care products which are dispensed at
our medical aesthetic centres.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical products
amounted to HK$1.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2020
and HK$1.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2019,
representing 0.6% and 1.1% of our total revenue, respectively.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Revenue from sale of skin care products

Skin care products include cleanser, toner, serum, moisturiser,
eye care products, ultraviolet (UV) protection products and
masks. We offer three lines of private label skin care products,
namely “CosMax”, “Cospeutic” and “XOVE”, that treat a range
of skin conditions. To provide more choices and meet individual
needs of clients, we also sell several other selected brands of
skin care products provided by third party manufacturers.

Revenue from sale of skin care products amounted to HK$18.6
million for the year ended 31 March 2020 and HK$10.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2019, representing 10.6% and
6.8% of our total revenue, respectively. The increase of
approximately HK$8.1 million, or 77.1%, was primarily due to
the expansion of its “XOVE” product lines, the launch of the new
promotions and the active promotional campaigns mounted on
various social media platforms for skin care products.

Revenue recognised from unutilised prepaid packages
Prepaid packages are offered to clients in connection with our
treatments. When designing the number of treatment sessions
in a prepaid package, we take into account, among other
things, our doctors’ assessment and also the protocols
recommended by the suppliers of treatment devices in respect
of the number of optimal sessions which should be taken to
achieve the desired results.

Revenue recognised from unutilised prepaid package amounted
to HK$10.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
HK$3.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2019, representing
only 5.9% and 2.1% of our total revenue, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Financial Review (Continued)

Other income

Other income accounted for approximately HK$4.1 million and
HK$2.6 million for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019,
representing 2.3% and 1.7% of the total revenue for the respective
year. The increment mainly arose from bank interest income from
more time deposits placed at various financial institutions during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

Cost of inventories and consumables

Cost of inventories and consumables amounted to approximately
HK$17.5 million and HK$15.3 million for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019, representing 9.9% and 9.9% of the total revenue,
respectively.

Staff costs

Staff costs increased by approximately HK$28.1 million, or 52.3%,
from approximately HK$53.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2019 to approximately HK$81.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2020. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in
commission to staff for sales and treatment and the rise in headcount
(as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019: 171 employees and 120
employees, respectively) for business expansion of Group. During the
year, the Group strategically increase the manpower for several
important functions, including, among others, the front-line staff for
expansion of operation capacity and better service quality, marketing
staff for boosting brand influence and sales; and product
development staff for the development and expansion of “XOVE”
product lines.

Property rentals and related expenses

Property rentals and related expenses and depreciation of right-of-
use assets increased by approximately HK$2.0 million, or 9.8%, from
approximately HK$20.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to
HK$22.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2020. The increase was
primarily due to additional rental expenses and other related costs
such as management fee and government rates, etc.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation expense in relation to property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately HK$12.3 million and HK$11.2 million for
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, representing 7.0% and
7.3% of total revenue for the respective years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Other expenses

Set forth below is a breakdown of our other expenses during the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019:

B[Ol EE (@)

Hibpak

HZE2020F K 201943 A31 HIEFEREAM
A EAMEHS AT

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000 % change

FET FHAT BILLEH

Credit card commission ERRA: 3,997 3,465 15.4
Advertising and promotion expenses  [E& MIERER 5,116 4,116 24.3
Repair and maintenance fees HIENREE 2,655 1,775 49.6
Transfer of listing expenses iR FTMAX 9 4,008 (99.8)
Professional fees HEER 2,480 2,042 21.4
Donations B 29 1,073 (97.3)

Consultancy fees B 5,607 4,828 16.1

Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - HKEKL

plant and equipment HEEB 2 EE - 1,761 N/A
Others Hib 8,771 7,076 24.0
28,664 30,144 4.9)

Other expenses decreased by approximately HK$1.4 million from
approximately HK$30.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to
approximately HK$28.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2020.
The decrease was primarily attributable to the one-off write-off of
leasehold improvements of approximately HK$1.6 million for 30/F
CWB Centre resulted from the early termination of the lease
agreement at FY18/19.

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$2.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil). The increase was primarily
attributable to the recognition of interest arising from lease liabilities,
following the adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Income tax expense

Income tax expense was approximately HK$2.1 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and HK$4.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2019. The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease
in profit for the year.

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$13.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2020, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$8.2 million or 37.6% as compared
with the year ended 31 March 2019.

Dividends

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a strong financial position with cash and
cash equivalents of HK$157.3 million as at 31 March 2020. Our
working capital, represented by net current assets was HK$89.9
million. Based on our steady cash inflows from operations, coupled
with sufficient cash and bank balances, we have adequate liquidity
and financial resources to meet our working capital requirements and
to fund our budgeted expansion plans in the next financial year.

As at 31 March 2020, most of our cash and bank balances was
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar.

By 75 ol (&)

FrieBimx
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

Cash Flow Analysis

The tables below sets forth the information as extracted from the
consolidated statement of cash flows of our Group for the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019:

nBEe MNABEERE)
REREDW

TRET B A& BB E 2020 4F 2 2019
FIANHILEFENGERERERNER

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000 % change
FET FHET BOE

Net cash flows from BETHFBRERE

operating activities VRRE 63,505 46,599 36.3
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEERBAE,(FTA) N/A

investing activities RenEFHE 26,122 (113,189) T3 FA
Net cash flows used in a BEEBAMAREREFE N/A

financing activity (15,372) - TEA
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRReEEDEM N/A

and cash equivalents OB ) %% 74,255 (66,590) @A
Cash and cash equivalents at FUMRE NI EEY

beginning of the year 11,319 77,909 (85.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRO\ENIEEEEY

end of the year 85,574 11,319 656.0

Our cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year were
approximately HK$85.6 million as at 31 March 2020, as compared to
approximately HK$11.3 million as at 31 March 2019, the increase
was due to the decrease in non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity more than three months when acquired.

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2020, our net cash flows from operating
activities was HK$63.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$16.9 million as compared with the year ended 31
March 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

Net Cash Flows From/(Used In) Investing Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2020, our net cash flows from investing
activities was HK$26.1 million, which was primarily attributable to
decrease in purchases of items of property, plant and equipment and
decrease in non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of more
than three months when acquired.

Net Cash Flows Used In Financing Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2020, our net cash flows used in a
financing activity was HK$15.4 million, represented principal portion
of lease payments during the year in relation to operating lease
arrangements entered into by the Group.

Lease Liabilities
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had lease liabilities of HK$48.5
million.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2020, our Group had capital commitments in respect
of the acquisition of items of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$0.5 million (2019: HK$0.3 million).

Property, Plant and Equipment
During the year, the Group acquired items of plant and equipment
amounting to HK$8.9 million (2019: HK$43.0 million).

Indebtedness

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

As at 31 March 2020, our Group had no outstanding interest-bearing
bank borrowings (2019: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 March 2020, our Group had no significant contingent
liabilities and guarantees (2019: Nil).

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2020, there was no charge on the assets of our
Group except for the time deposits of HK$55.5 million (2019:
HK$54.3 million) pledged for banking facilities as security for credit
card instalments programmes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Indebtedness (Continued)

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2020, our Group had no interest-bearing bank
borrowings (2019: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk

Our Group carries out its business in Hong Kong and most of its
transactions are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. Our Group did
not experience any material impact or difficulties in liquidity on its
operations resulting from the fluctuation in exchange rate, and no
hedging transaction or forward contract arrangement was made by
the Group during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March
2019.

Interest Rate Risk

Our Group has no significant interest rate risk. Our Group currently
does not have any specific policies in place to manage interest rate
risk and has not entered into any interest rate swap transactions to
mitigate interest rate risk, but will closely monitor related risk in the
future.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant investments
held by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2020, nor
were there any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the reporting period. Save as
disclosed in this report, there is no plan authorised by the Board for
other material investments or additions of capital assets as at the
date of this report.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2020, our Group has a total of 171 employees (2019:
120). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, of our Group
were approximately HK$81.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: approximately HK$53.7 million). Remuneration is
determined with reference to factors such as comparable market
salaries and work performance, time commitment and responsibilities
of each individual. Employees are provided with relevant in-house
and/or external training from time to time. In addition to a basic salary,
year-end bonuses are offered to employees who performed
outstandingly to attract and retain eligible employees to contribute to
our Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DN
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Use of Proceeds

The Company was successfully listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 10 January 2017 by way of placing (the “Placing”). The net
proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$55.6 million,
which was based on the placing price of HK$0.8 per share and the
actual expenses related to the Listing. After the Listing, these
proceeds were and will be used for the purposes in accordance with
the future plans as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated
30 December 2016.

KRERENMEREFEE LMAEHER
20203 A31 HE/E AL :

The net proceeds from the Placing from the date of the Listing to 31
March 2020 were used as follows:

Planned use of

proceeds as
shown in the
Planned use of Prospectus
proceeds as from the date
showninthe of the Listing to
Prospectus 31 March 2020
(adjusted on (adjusted on Actual use of
a pro rata aprorata  proceeds from
basis based  basis based on the date of Unutilised
on the actual the actual the Listing to amount as at
net proceeds) net proceeds) 31 March2020 31 March 2020
BREBR
ERFMEA
LA
BRERBR Z2020F
BEEME 3A31HK
liEEEN FrSRE
RERE BERR BLmHEH
(REBER (REER ZE2020F #2020 F
Fr&=E FriSRIE 3A31H 3A31H
BRI FERRLL A M TS RIE 5 ARE A
HE) HE) BERRR HeH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET
Expand our network of medical BABFNEEN 24,200 24,200 24,200 -
aesthetic centres BEEXAPLER
in Hong Kong
Broaden the variety of treatment BARFIRERRE X 14,600 14,600 14,600 -
services and product offering EmfER
Refurbish our CWB Centre e Esig7a pl:oE k7 il 4,500 4,500 4,500 -
Upgrade our IT infrastructure ARBEMEE AR
HRER 7,700 7,700 7,700 -
General working capital —REEES 4,600 4,600 4,600 -
55,600 55,600 55,600 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Prospects

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Hong Kong government required
all beauty parlours to close for 28 days from 10 April 2020 to 7 May
2020. Although the Group’s main services and treatments were not
associated with those procedures defined to be provided by beauty
parlours under the Amendment Regulation, Miricor places the health
and safety of its customers and staff as its highest priority. Hence, the
Group decided to close all of its medical aesthetic centres during the
same period as well. Since the outbreak of the COVID-19, consumer
sentiment has been adversely affected. It is expected that the
business environment will be challenging in the near term until the
spread of the COVID-19 is effectively contained.

The Group will continue to seize the opportunities arising from
people’s increasing consciousness on health through strategically
expanding its new beauty brand “VITAE by CosMax”. Coupled with
the partnership with WeDoctor and the newly established XOVE
skincare product line, the Group is well-equipped to expand its
customer base and further penetrate the market.

We believe that our proactive management strategy makes the Group
resilient to changes. However, sales of products and services and
utilisation rate of our medical aesthetic centres will be highly
dependent on the recovery of the overall business environment. The
CQOVID-19 pandemic has increased uncertainty in our future operating
performance which currently is difficult to predict. Therefore, we have
been focusing on possible cost control measures and will continue to
monitor the financial position of the Group. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group has cash and cash equivalents of HK$157.3 million (2019:
HK$119.2 million) and there is no external borrowings. The current
ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.56 as at 31
March 2020. The healthy and sound liquidity position of Group enable
us to overcome this period of uncertainties.

The Group is fully committed to offering top-notch non-surgical
aesthetic services. We have been keeping a close watch on the latest
technologies and procure the best devices to enrich its services and
provide premium treatment to customers. The management will also
look for any potential expansion opportunities so as to strengthen the
Group’s prominent position in the market, maximise the profitability
and generate the best returns for shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BEREHE

Executive Director

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Z3) (with former name Lai Chi, Gigi (32%)),
aged 48, is an executive Director, chairlady of the Board and chief
executive officer. She is also the chairlady of the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee. She is
responsible for the overall management, branding and strategic
planning, marketing and development of the Group. Ms. LAl Ka Yee
Gigi (Mrs. Gigi Ma) joined the Group in July 2009 and was appointed
as a Director on 6 July 2016, re-designated as an executive Director
and appointed as chairlady of the Board and the chief executive
officer on 19 December 2016. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Before founding the Group, Mrs. Gigi Ma was active in the fim and
television entertainment industry between 1985 and 2008. She
withdrew from the film and television entertainment industry in late
2008 and has since devoted her full effort to the development of the
business in the medical aesthetic service industry. Mrs. Gigi Ma is the
sister-in-law of Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry.

Mr. MA Ting Wai Barry (F5RE{%), aged 54, is an executive Director
and our Group’s IT and business development director and is
principally responsible for overseeing the Group’s business expansion
and the development and maintenance of IT systems in relation to
our Group’s business operations. Mr. Ma was appointed as a Director
on 25 July 2016 and was re-designated as the executive Director on
19 December 2016.

Mr. Ma is actively involved in developing the IT infrastructure of the
Group, integrating different departments with the IT platforms, with a
view to enhance operation efficiency. He also performs a vital role in
monitoring and evaluating the Group’s business and strategic
planning.

Mr. Ma graduated from the University of Southern California with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science, with extensive
experience gained from oversea and in the Greater China region,
ranging from technical to the sales and marketing function of
multinational companies including companies from Fortune 500. He is
an entrepreneur with extensive experience in direct investments and
business development, bringing to the Group his sound know-how in
strategic planning. Mr. Ma is the brother-in-law of Mrs. Gigi Ma.

Mr. Ma resigned as an executive Director on 1 July 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2EREHE

Mr. HO, Tsz Leung Lincoln (1% %), aged 44, joined the Group in
July 2019 as the chief brand officer in which he has been responsible
for formulating and leading the Group’s brand strategies, as well as
overseeing the Group’s marketing and sales operations. Mr. Ho was
appointed as an executive Director on 22 April 2020. Mr. Ho has
been promoted to Chief Operation Officer effective May 2020. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Ho worked in the role of art/creative director in
a number of advertising firms, namely DDB Worldwide, Leo Burnett
etc., whose clients included a world renowned international fast-food
corporation, personal skin care corporations, an automobile
corporation and a major transport corporation in Hong Kong. He has
also contributed in the film industry that earned him a nomination in
The 24th Hong Kong Film Awards in 2005.

Mr. Ho spent a decade at Neo Derm Group Ltd, a medical aesthetics
company, from 2006 to 2016 with his last position as marketing
communication director, and then worked in Airport Authority Hong
Kong in 2016 as assistant general manager in the retail and
advertising department. He rejoined Neo Derm Group Ltd from 2017
to 2019 with his last position as digital marketing director. He had
also worked for BTL Hong Kong Limited as regional marketing
director before joining the Group.

Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor of Arts in Design from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2002, as well as a Diploma in Design Studies
in 1999 from the same university.

Dr. LAM Ping Yan (%% &), 68, joined the Group in July 2020 as an
executive Director. He had been serving as a public officer for 34
years from 1978 to 2012. He commenced his career as a public
officer when he joined at the then Medical and Health Department
(now known as Department of Health) of Hong Kong in 1978 as a
Medical and Health Officer before being promoted to Senior Medical
and Health Officer in 1984, junior directorate officer (Principal Medical
Officer) of the Department of Health in 1989. He was appointed as
Chief Port Health Officer and Community Physician in 1993, Assistant
Director of Health in 1994, Deputy Director of Health in 1996 and
Director of Health in 2003. During Dr. Lam’s tenure as a public officer,
he had been involved in the prevention and control of severe acute
respiratory syndrome (SARS) and swine flu in Hong Kong as Deputy
Director of Health and Director of Health, respectively, before he
retired from his 34 years tenure as a public officer in 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BEREHE

Dr. Lam played and continues to play an active role in the public
health community. He has been a life member of the Society of
Community Medicine and life associate member of the Hong Kong
AIDS Foundation, since 1990 and 1991, respectively. Between 1995
and 2013, he had served as a Justice of the Peace. He was a
member of the Council of Smoking and Health from 1996 to 2003.
Between 2001 and 2012, he was a member of the Medical Council of
Hong Kong. Between 2003 and June 2012, he served as (i)
Commissioner of Auxiliary Medical Service; (i) Chairman of Chinese
Medicines Board; (i) Chairman of International Advisory Board of
Hong Kong Chinese Materia Medica Standards; (iv) Chairman of
Pharmacy and Poisons Board; (v) Chairman of Radiation Board; (vi)
Member of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong; (vii) Member
of the Chinese Medicine Practitioners Board; and (vii) Member of the
Hospital Authority Board. He has been an Honorary Professor of the
Department of Medicine and Therapeutics and School of Public
Health of the Chinese University of Hong Kong since 2004. Between
2004 and 2005, Dr. Lam was a Council member of the Hong Kong
College of Community Medicine. He was Deputy Chairman of Cancer
Coordinating Committee from 2006 to June 2012. Between 2008
and June 2012, he was the Vice Chairman of the Working Group on
Diet and Physical Activity and Steering Committee on Prevention and
Control of Non-Communicable Diseases. He was the Vice Chairman
of Working Group on Alcohol and Health and Working Group on
Injuries from 2009 to June 2012. On various occasions, he had
served as a temporary advisor to the World Health Organization
(“WHQO”) on policy and strategy of development of traditional medicine
and control of non-communicable diseases. He served as Chairman
to the 2009/2010 Session of the Regional Committee Meeting of the
Western Pacific Region of WHO. Between 2010 and 2013, Dr. Lam
served as an Adviser of the Overseas Expert Consulting Committee
of the Ministry of Health of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for
Health Care Reform. In 2012, he was awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC. He was further awarded with the Cross-Strait
Contribution Award for Chinese in Tobacco Control by the Chinese
Association on Tobacco Control in the PRC in 2012. He was the
Principal Adviser (International Collaboration) of the National
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine of PRC between 2012
and 2017.
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Dr. Lam graduated from the University of Hong Kong, faculty of
Medicine with his Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery in
1977. He further obtained his Master of Medicine degree in Public
Health from the National University of Singapore in 1992. He is also a
fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and a registered
specialist in community medicine.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David (¥%5[E]), aged 71, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is
also a member of audit committee and nomination committee.
Mr.Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong in November
1975 with a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive
experience in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in the Shipfinance
Department of Credit Agricole CIB with effect from 1 May 2014 and
was the Senior Advisor to the Global Shipping Group of that bank
from June 2014 to June 2016. He was the Honorary Chairman of
Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited for 3 years from 2016. Credit
Agricole CIB and Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited are third
parties independent of the Company and not connected persons of
the Company. Mr. Cheng was a member of the Working Group on
Transportation under the Hong Kong Economic Development
Commission, a member of Hong Kong Maritime and Port Board, and
the chairman of the Promotion and External Relations Committee of
the Maritime and Port Board till March 2018. In May 2015, Mr. Cheng
was conferred the Distinction of “Chevalier de I'Ordre National du
Mérite” by the French Government. Mr. Cheng has been an
independent non-executive director of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 716) since 1 November 2012 and the
independent non-executive director of Sincere Navigation Corp (7
38 B 19 B FR A A1) which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
with effect from 28 June 2019. He is the Honorary Treasurer of the
Hong Kong Maritime Museum from 2016.
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Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo (Zf#i 1), aged 59, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He
is the chairman of the audit and remuneration committees and a
member of the nomination committee. Mr. Cheng has been a
member and fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales since December 1987 and August 1998
respectively and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) since January 1999, and a member and
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada
since November 1990 and December 2019. Mr. Cheng has over 30
years of experience in auditing, finance and business management.
He has been the sole proprietor of Erik Cheng & Co., Certified Public
Accountants in Hong Kong since 1999.Mr. Cheng graduated from
the University of Kent, England with a Bachelor’'s degree in
Accounting in July 1983 and a Master’s degree in Accounting and
Finance from the London School of Economics, England in August
1984. Mr. Cheng resigned as an independent non-executive director
of C.P. Lotus Corporation which was delisted on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 121) with effect from 28 October
2019. Mr. Cheng currently acts as an independent non-executive
director of a number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
namely, CSI Properties Limited (Stock Code: 497), HKC (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 190), Chong Hing Bank Limited (Stock Code:
1111), Top Spring International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3688),
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (Stock Code: 194), Goldbond
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 172), Chia Tai Enterprises
International Limited (Stock Code: 3839), CPMC Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 906), Somerley Capital Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8439), Kidsland International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2122)
and C.P. Pokphand Co.Ltd (Stock Code: 43). Mr. Cheng retired the
independent non-executive director of DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 620) with effect from 29
May 2020.
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Mr. LI Wai Kwan (Z{##£), aged 48, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is
a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee. Mr.
Li has many years of experience in accounting, finance and
investment management. Mr. Li is the chief financial officer of Crystal
International Group Limited (stock code: 2232), which is principally
engaged in manufacturing of fashion products since November 2018,
while he is responsible for finance matters for that group. From March
2005 to September 2006, he worked for Esprit Holdings Limited,
which is listed on the Main Board (stock code: 330) and principally
engaged in manufacturing, retail and wholesale distribution of fashion
products, and he served as a vice president of operational finance
and a vice president of finance in Asia Pacific region from March 2005
to September 2006, while he was responsible for finance and
operational matters. From October 2006 to September 2010, he was
a vice president of COFCO China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited,
which is listed on the Main Board (stock code: 606) and principally
engaged in trading on agricultural raw materials, manufacturing and
distributing food products, while he was responsible for finance,
investment and company secretarial matters. Mr. Li was a managing
director and director of the board of COFCO Agricultural Industrial
Investment Fund Management Company Limited, which is principally
engaged in asset management, from September 2010 to October
2011, and he was responsible for managing overall business and
investment matters. Mr. Li was a managing director of Origo Partners
PLC, whose shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange and
principal business is private equity investment, from November 2011
to January 2013, and he was responsible for investment matters. Mr.
Li was the chief financial officer of Zhuhai Dahenggin Company
Limited and its affiliate Zhuhai Dahengqin Property Company Limited,
which is principally engaged in primary land development, real estate
development, theme park construction and operation, city operational
management, and asset management in Hengaqin Free Trade Zone,
from August 2013 to October 2018, while he was responsible for
finance, investment and fund management matters. Mr. Li is a
director, executive committee member and honorary treasurer of the
Hong Kong — ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation since
2015, a board member of Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada — Hong Kong Chapter since 2017, an Honorary President of
the Institute of Certified Management Accountants — Hong Kong &
Macau Branch since 2018 and a Chairman of Institute of Public
Accountants — Hong Kong Branch since 2019.
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Mr. Li was the chairman of Investor Relations Committee of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies from 2008 to 2010, the
honorary vice chairman of China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility
Association (Overseas) in 2009, the chairman of Partnership and
Promotion Committee of the Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association from 2009 to 2010, a member of the Organising
Committee of Directors of the Year Awards 2010 organised by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2010, a committee member of the
PRC committee of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity
Association in 2011, and a committee member of Public Awareness
Committee of Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts in 2016. Mr. Li
was a member of Finance Committee of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority from 2010 to 2012. Mr. Li was the guest lecturer of the
Macau University of Science and Technology in 2016. Mr. Li
graduated from University of Toronto in Canada with a bachelor of
commerce degree with distinction in November 1995. He further
obtained a master of business administration degree from Schulich
School of Business, York University in Canada in November 1996.
Mr. Li was admitted as a chartered financial analyst of the Chartered
Financial Analysts Institute in September 2001, a certified general
accountant of the Certified General Accountants Association of
Canada in October 2002, a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in October 2004, a
fellow chartered certified accountant of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in April 2010, a chartered professional
accountant of the Chartered Professional Accountants of British
Columbia, Canada in June 2015, a member of Hong Kong Business
Accountants Association in December 2015, a fellow certified
management accountant of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants in April 2016, a fellow chartered accountant of the
Institute of Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2018,
and a fellow of the Institute of Public Accountants in July 2019 in
Australia, and a fellow of the Institute of Financial Accountants in July
2019 in United Kingdom.
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Mr. Li is the independent non-executive director of K W Nelson
Interior Design and Contracting Group Limited (stock code: 8411)
since 18 November 2016, the independent non-executive director of
Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1808) since
27 April 2017, the independent non-executive director of TL Natural
Gas Holdings Limited (stock code: 8536) since 18 May 2018, and the
independent non-executive director of China Greenfresh Group
Company Limited (stock code: 6183) since 20 July 2018. Mr. Li was
the independent non-executive director of China Graphene Group
Limited (stock code: 63) from 1 February 2018 to 30 November
2018.

Note: The Group’s business are under the direct responsibility of the above executive
Directors who are the senior management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Code

The Group recognises the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the board of directors (the “Board”) is fully
committed to doing so. The Board believes that high standards of
corporate governance provide a framework and solid foundation for
the Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency, achieve
high standard of accountability and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
the Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG Code, except the deviation stipulated below.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Under the current management
structure of the Company, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Mrs. Gigi Ma) is the
chairlady of the Board (the “Chairlady”) and chief executive officer of
the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”). As Mrs. Gigi Ma has
been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer and
sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the establishment of
the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi Ma acting as the
Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more effective management
and planning of the Group. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in the
circumstances and currently does not propose to separate the
functions of chairman and the chief executive officer.

Compliance of Code of Conduct for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Having made specific
enquiries to all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by
the Company during the Period.
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Board of Directors

Board Composition

During the Year Under Review and up to the date of this report, the
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry

Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln (appointed on 22 April 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David

Mr. Li Wai Kwan

*:Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry resigned as an executive Director on 1 July 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has complied
with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least 3 independent non-executive directors representing more than
one-third of the Board and the non-executive directors whom
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. All independent non-
executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors makes an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of that view that all the independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines.

Other than Mrs. Gigi Ma is the sister-in-law of Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry,
the Directors do not have financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 21 to 28 of this annual report.
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Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer. As Mrs. Gigi
Ma has been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive
Officer and sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the
establishment of the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi
Ma acting as the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more
effective management and planning of the Group. Therefore, the
Board considers that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code is appropriate in the circumstances and currently does not
propose to separate the functions of chairman and the chief executive
officer.

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer who is
responsible for overall management, branding and strategic, planning,
marketing and development of our Group. She also is a member of
remuneration committee and chairing the Nomination Committee.

Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes controlling resources allocation of the Company and
leading the Company to strive for success. It oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management
and performances. The management team is delegated with the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of
the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board to the management include (1) the preparation of interim
and annual reports and announcements for the Board’s approval
before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures; and (3) compliance with
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the
appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures
are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.
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Board/Board Committee Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s interim and annual results. Four
regular board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2020 and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is
set out on page 32 of this report. At the Board meeting held on 15
June 2020, the Board has approved, among other matters, the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to
Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
Directors for their comment before being tabled at the next Board
meeting for approval. The minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
HE/BTEERE

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual
Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENEEE HMZEEE REZEE S
Ezees E S EE BEXE
Executive Directors HiTES

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi MLt 4/4 - 3/3 11 11
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry SERTAE 4/4 - - - 1/1

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFEHTES
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David HaR ks 4/4 3/3 - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BEMEE 4/4 3/3 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FRERE 4/4 33 33 - 11

32 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERBME

Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of Members after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years.

There was no change in the composition of the Board during the Year
Under Review.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company received from the Directors the
following records of the training attended during the year ended 31
March 2020.
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Nature of Trainings

BT
Type 1 Type 2
F18 %28

Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Ry + v
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry BERERE 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors & JE#{T&E =
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo EOGRAN S A v 4
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David B 5t A4 4
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FEBEE v
Type of trainings: Bl
1. Reading materials. 1. BIEMEL -
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars. 2. HREEFIRE &R Wil TS g -
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Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board, which include (a) develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries; (c) review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the corporate
governance report of the Company required to be prepared pursuant
to the Listing Rules; and (f) consider, review and decide any other
topics, as authorised by the Board. The Board reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate governance policy.

Audit Committee

An audit committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference following the Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of the
Listing Rules and the CG Code. The audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) is authorised to commit Company funds in
order to obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants,
investigatory services or other expert advice. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Fu
Kwok David, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Li Wai Kwan and Mr. Cheng
Yuk Wo is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
March 2020 and the meeting was attended by the Company’s
external auditor so that the members of the Audit Committee could
exchange their views and concerns on the financial reporting process
of the Group with the auditor.
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During to the Year Under Review, the Audit Committee had reviewed
with the Management and the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal controls, and financial reporting matters including
the following:

° the review of the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019;

° the review of the interim results;

° the recommendation to the Board for the proposal for re-
appointment of the external auditor of the Company and
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

° the review of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out on
page 32 of this report.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee has been established by the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
following the Rules 3.25 to Rules 3.26 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code and the maijority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs and responsible to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi and two INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk
Wo and Mr. Li Wai Kwan. Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held three meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2020 with the presence of all committee members
and approved the remuneration packages and performance bonuses
for the Directors and senior management of the Company.
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The Group’s businesses are under the direct responsibility of the
above executive Directors who are the senior management of the
Company. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the
year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference following the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for, amongst other things, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, considering
the reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for
Directors and making recommendations to the Board in respect of
the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority and responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi and two INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok
David and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo. Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi is the chairlady of
the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 March 2020 with the presence of all committee members and
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
concluded that members of the Board have possessed the expertise
and independence to carry out the Board’s functions and
responsibilities.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of
appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection criteria used in
assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, such
candidate’s academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity etc.
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Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the nomination committee reviews
the structure, size and composition of the Board periodically and
make recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. When it is necessary
to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an additional director, the
nomination committee identifies or selects candidates as
recommended to the committee pursuant to the criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy. Based upon the recommendation of the
nomination committee, the Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment. In addition, every director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation or re-election at least once every three years and shall be
eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting. The nomination
committee shall review the overall contribution and service to the
Company, expertise and professional qualifications of the retiring
directors, who offered himself/herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting, to determine whether such director continues to
meet the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against selection criteria.

For selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board taking into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time and with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board’s composition will
be disclosed in the annual report of the Company. The Board will give
adequate consideration to this policy when it identifies suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
amongst them, three are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also characterized
by significant diversity, regardless in terms of age, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy
had been met.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to implement
the Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. At present, the Board has not set any
measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness.

Dividend Policy

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, dividends may be paid
out of the profits of the Company, or subject to solvency of the
Company, out of sums standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors of the Company.

Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Directors of the Company,
depending on results of operations, working capital, financial position,
future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other
factors which the Directors of the Company may consider relevant
from time to time. Any future declaration, recommendation and
payment of dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the
historical declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the
absolute discretion of the Directors of the Company. The Company
does not have any predetermined dividend payout ratio.
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Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements on an on-going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
with a view to ensure that such financial statement gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of the results and
cash flows for the financial year. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board has selected
appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects. The interim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a timely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The responsibility of the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the Year Under Review, the remuneration paid/payable to

Ernst & Young is set out as follows:
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Fee paid/payable

Frig AR5 BN ENER
HK$’000

F&TT

Audit services ZEH R 1,650
Non-audit services IEZERTS 450
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board
oversees the overall risk management of the Group and endeavours
to identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been developed with the following features and processes:

(@  The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and
considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of
the risk assessment; and determines the risk management
strategies and internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal
control processes are in place; revises the risk management
strategies and internal control processes in case of any
significant change of situation; and reports the results of risk
monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.
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(b)  The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are summarised as follows:

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information used within the business or for publication;
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside information
are strictly prohibited; and to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is currently
of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of
the Group’s business. Nevertheless the Company engaged an
external professional firm to carry out internal audit functions. It was
decided that the Board would be directly responsible for internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external professional firm as its risk
management and internal control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to
conduct the annual review of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2020. Such review is
conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The
scope of review was previously determined and approved by the
Board. The Adviser has reported to the Audit Committee and
management for findings and areas for improvement, if any. The
Board and Audit Committee are of the view that there are no material
internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser
are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.
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Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information
about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure
of Inside Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information. With
those guidelines and procedures, the Group has management
controls in place to ensure that potential inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the
Board to decide about the need for disclosure.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
Company secretarial service and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its
Company Secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of HKICPA and has over 25
years of experience in the field of company secretarial services. Mr.
Lo has confirmed that for the Year Under Review, he has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. Mr. Lo is not an
employee of our Group and he is responsible for advisory to the
Group on corporate governance matters. Ms. Tsang Chui Ying, our
financial controller, is the person who Mr. Lo can contact for the
purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the Code.

Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and to put forward proposal at general meetings.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Article 85 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
no person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as
a Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written
notice must state that person’s biographical details as required by
Rule 13.51 of Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholder of the
Company to propose a person for election as director is posted on
the Company’s website.

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing by post at Room 1605, 16th Floor, Leighton
Centre, 77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The
Company shall forward the Shareholder(s)’ enquiries and concerns to
the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company, where
appropriate, to respond to the Shareholder(s)’ enquiries.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company communicates with its Shareholders and investors
through various means. Timely publication of interim and annual
results announcements on the latest development
of the Company and press release on the Company’s website
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk could make the Shareholders appraise the
Company’s financial position. Shareholders are highly required to pay
attention to these public information. Holding of an annual general
meeting could provide an effective forum for the Shareholders to
share their views with the Board. At the annual general meeting held
in 2019, separate resolutions were proposed by the chairman in
respect of each separate, including re-election of directors and voted
by way of poll. The Company announced the results of the poll in the
manner prescribed under the Listing Rules. The respective chairman
of the Board, audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee had attended the annual general meeting held
in 2019 to ensure effective communication with shareholders. All the
Directors had attended the annual general meeting held in 2019.

Investor Relations

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the
investor relations department (email address: miricor@sprg.com.hk).
The management always provides prompt responses to any such
enquiries.

Constitutional Documents

The Company has published its memorandum of association and the
Articles on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the Year Under Review, no amendments were
made to the constitutional documents of the Company.
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About this Report

Preparation Basis and Scope

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited is delighted to publish its annual
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report for the year
ended 31 March 2020 (“ESG Report”), demonstrating our continuous
commitment to corporate social responsibility. This ESG Report has
been prepared in accordance with ESG Reporting Guide set out by
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and has complied with the “comply
or explain” provisions. This ESG Report covers the sustainability
performance and initiatives of the Group in respect of corporate social
responsibility during the reporting period, covering the Group’s core
businesses — the provision of medical aesthetic services, and the
sale of skin care products in Hong Kong. This ESG Report shall be
published both in Chinese and English. Should there be any
discrepancy between the Chinese and the English versions, the
English version shall prevail.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the period from 1
April 2019 to 31 March 2020 (“reporting period”). It includes
disclosure of significant environmental and social impacts of our
operation in Hong Kong.

Introduction

The Group is a medical aesthetic service provider in Hong Kong and
operates three “CosMax” branded medical aesthetic centres at prime
locations in Causeway Bay, Central District and Tsim Sha Tsui. We
offer comprehensive and tailored non-surgical medical aesthetic
services and quality skin care products to improve customers’
complexion and overall physical appearance.

The Group recognises the importance of sustainable development.
Sustainability is crucial for the Group’s growth in order to achieve
business excellence and enhance long-term competitiveness. The
Group has established and implemented various policies to manage
and monitor the risks related to environment, employment, operating
practices and community. Details of the management approaches to
sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in this ESG
Report.
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Stakeholders Engagement

Stakeholders engagement is essential to the formulation of strategies
for sustainable development. It allows the Group to understand risks
and opportunities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are
important to our business and established various channels for

&SR

BEAREERBRROBRENFNHESE
RUBEARETHERREES - ARECH5
ZHEBRMNE  REHERBRMNERS KR
SREBBTNEER -

communication.

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures

BHE i SERE it

Government Comply with laws and pay Exchange of Operated, managed and paid taxes

proper tax payments correspondences, relevant  according to laws and regulations,
meetings and information  strengthened safety management;
disclosure accepted government’s supervision,
inspection and evaluation.
B BPAPIRZEGNTIE BAEK  HEGERE BEREEOIRAMKE - BB RENH

Shareholders and
Investors

BREEE

Employees

i
i

M3

Provide high transparency
for information disclosure

and protect shareholder’s
rights and interest

RERWERHSERE
LA Be R B B SR A ) B )

Maintain a safe and
respectful workplace,
including equal
opportunities as well as
health and safety

HEBZEMNEENTIES
B BIREFEREUR
BERZZ

FHE R

Annual reports, interim
reports and
announcements

Annual general meeting
and other shareholder
meetings

Fih - PHBERLS

BERBFEAEMEMBEER

i

Training and briefing
sessions, employee
feedback mechanism, and
fair mechanism for
employment and
promotion
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Disclosed company’s information by
publishing annual reports, interim reports
and announcements.

Issued notices of general meeting and
proposed resolutions according to
regulations.
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Provided training to employees; provided
employment and promotion practices that
do not discriminate on grounds of gender,
disability, pregnancy, family status, race,
colour, religion, age or other conditions
recognized in law.
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Stakeholders Engagement (Continued)

&2 HE(8)

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
B E e SHERE it
Customers Provide safe, high-quality  Customer satisfaction Strengthened quality management to
products and services to  surveys, customer ensure safety, high quality production and
customers feedback activities, day to  communicate with customers to improve
day operations/ quality of services.
communications, service
and product complaints
and response mechanisms
B AEPRELZE  BEE FPRERADT TPRE NREEEEURRZE  BE4E-
an S AR 7 EE) - BEEE B THREPBBUNSEREEE -
PR 75 K2 E % A K [0 e A
il
Environmental Aspects RIEEE
Emissions BB

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable development
and compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection, the Group endeavors to minimise the environmental
impact of the business activities and maintain green operations and
green office practices.

The Group has established system to ensure environmental
compliance. It seeks to optimise its production by adopting low
energy consumption and environmental pollution techniques and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the employees through
regular trainings. The management team has the overall responsibility
for environmental protection matters within the Group. The
management team reviews the Group’s environmental compliance on
a regular basis. The Group was in strict compliance with related
environmental laws and regulation, including but not limited to Waste
Disposal Ordinance. The Group was not subject to any environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions during the
reporting period.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

In the daily operation of the Group, the major emissions are clinical
wastes and the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) incurred by the purchased
energy resources. Clinical wastes generated by the operations can be
divided into two categories. Category A includes syringes, needles,
cartridges and other sharp instruments which have been used or
which have become contaminated. Category B includes surgical
dressings, swabs dribbling with blood, caked with blood or containing
free-flowing blood. Clinical wastes collection box is placed in each
doctor’s room. Category A waste is collected in Sharps Collector.
Once it is filled up, it must be covered and wait for recycle. Category
B waste is collected in red biochemical wastes plastic bags. All
wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger for record.
Quialified clinical waste recycling companies are engaged to perform
waste disposal and treatment so as to minimize the impact on the
nature. During the reporting period, the total amount of clinical wastes
recycled by qualified clinical waste recycling companies is 152.50 kg
(2019: 113.30 kg).

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The Group
manages the carbon footprint by minimizing the energy consumption
and water consumptions as these activities cause significant emission
of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures adopted on resources
saving are mentioned in the section “Use of Resources” of this ESG
Report.

Major air pollutants emissions from vehicles during the reporting
period as follows:

IRIFEA ()
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Air Pollutant Emission ZERERYBER
Air Pollutant Air Pollutant ZERISEY ZRFEY  ERFEY
Type of Air Pollutants Emission (kg) Emission (kg) =Rl HHE(TR) EFHE(TR)
2020 2019 2020 F 20194
Sulphur Dioxide 0.03 0.038 —&EbhR 0.03 0.03
Nitrogen Oxides 0.84 0.98 Aa 0.84 0.98
Particulate Matter 0.06 007  SBFHF 0.06 0.07
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)

During the reporting period, the GHG emissions from the operation is

set out below:

IRIZEEME (&)

ey ()

RIS R - LBE AR ESREERYRT
mE

GHG Emissions BERBHERY

Type of GHG Equivalent CO, Equivalent CO, BERE “EtHREER “EtREE
emissions emission (kg)  emission (kg)  HHWER R (TR) FH(TR)

2020 2019 2020 2019%
Scope 1 Direct emissions 5,543.00 5,748.79 HE1EREN 5,543.00 5,748.79
Scope 2 Indirect emissions 203,093.43 164,718.85 HE2 BN 203,093.43 164,718.85
Total 208,636.43 170,467.64 st 208,636.43 170,467.64
Intensity 63.98 kg/m? 52.7kgm?  HE 6398 %/ Fhk 527F7/FhHk
Note: S

The calculation of the greenhouse gas is based on the “Corporate Accounting and

Reporting Standard” from greenhouse gas protocol.
Scope 1:

Scope 2:
the Group

Scope 3:
is not controlled by the Group

Use of Resources

Direct emissions from vehicles that are owned by the Group

Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by

is not disclosed as it is an optional disclosure and the corresponding emission

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environment, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources,

including energy such as minimize waste streams and emissions and

implement effective recycling program. The Group also adopted

“Environmental Office Practices” in order to use resource more

efficiently. Some of the key measures are as follows:

Energy consumption by the Group during the reporting period is set

out below:
Energy Consumption

Energy consumed Energy consumed
Type of energy (KWh) (kWh)
2020 2019
Unleaded petrol 18,195.50 18,871.06
Purchased electricity 276,737.00 222,731.00
Total 294,932.50 241,602.06

Energy intensity 90.44 KWh/m?

74.75 KWh/m?
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BRER (TRE) (TRE)
2020 20195

EiE pap 18,195.50 18,871.06
MNEEN 276,737.00 222,731.00
@it 294.932.50 241,602.06
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

Paper Saving

In office, we encourage the employee to use both sides of paper and
use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to minimise pages, if possible.
Besides, use electronic media is recommended for circulation/
communication, to minimize using paper (eg. without unnecessary
cover page and fax). During the reporting period, the total amount of
recycled paper disposed at landfills is 546 kg (2019: 315 kg).

Water Conservation

Employee should report leaking faucet or pipe to the relevant authority
and turn off the tap when not in use. During the reporting period, the
total consumption of the water and water intensity per employee is
104 m3 and 0.03 m%/m?, respectively (2019: 210.00 m® and 0.06 m?¥/
ma).

Electricity Conservation

The electrical appliance should be set as energy saving mode where
possible. For computers, the idle automatically mode is 20 minutes or
less. The set room temperature should be set in a range from 20°C to
25.5°C. The ideal optimal temperature is 25.5°C. Also, switch off
unnecessary lighting and power supply should be switched off when
they are not in use.

Green Pantry

Employee are encouraged to use reusable cutleries, cups and
glasses and use environmental friendly cleaning products (e.g.
biodegradable or phosphate free detergent, refillable soap, etc.).

Packaging Material

The major packaging material used in our business are mainly paper
and plastic bottle. The consumption of those material during the
reporting period is summarized below:
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ERRERAEEE B546 T 52 (20194 : 315
F5) e

B4 Ak
EEEMMBRIEFIRE KEB LB ERKX
WHEE AR AR KEETE - R - AKX
BERERIEEREBFTENRAKEED A
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T

Packaging Material Consumption BEMBEFE
Packaging material Amount (Ibs) Amount (Ibs) BEME SHEEE(BE) YEE ()
2020 2019 2020 F 2019
Paper 9,910.00 11,986.00 #oR 9,910.00 11,986.00
Plastic bottle 46,769.00 25,743.00 2R 46,769.00 25,743.00
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

The Environment and Natural Resources

According to the Group’s “Environmental, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group raises staff’'s awareness of environmental issues through
education and training and enlist their support in improving our
performance, promote environmental awareness amongst our
customers, business partners and shareholders and support
community activities in relation to environmental protection and
sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and present
business activities impacting upon health, safety and environmental
matters. With the integration of policies mentioned in session
“Emissions” and “Use of Resource”, the Group is allowed to minimize
the impacts to the environment and natural resources.

Social Aspects

Employment and Labour Practice

Employment

The Group considers human resources as its most important asset,
employees are encouraged to invest in career growth where the
Group provides on-the-job training, and further education supports
that enhance their professional knowledge and skills, thus improving
the overall calibre of its workforce. In addition, the Group also
evaluates employee performance on a regular basis and recognises
and rewards outstanding employees. The Group has established and
implemented “Staff Handbook”, which contains the policies relating to
human resources, covering areas such as compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare.

The remuneration package of our employees includes basic salary,
commission and discretionary performance bonus. In order to
incentivise our staff for their contribution to improve our business
performance, we have formulated an incentive scheme for certain
front-line employees with their commission linked to the amount of
sales of our services and products. We offer a fixed commission rate
which applies uniformly across all services and products we offer,
including the sales of one-off treatment, prepaid packages and skin
care products.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

It is our objective to provide equality of opportunity for all staff in
relation to all human resources matters. We shall recognize and
reward meritorious performance and provide equal opportunity of
employment irrespective of sex, age, marital status, race, religion,
disability or employment status. The principle of equal opportunities is
applied in all employment policies, in particular to recruitment,
training, career development and promotion of employees. If
employee is treated unequally in the workplace, he/she can report to
the supervisors.

Further, we offer welfare and benefits for all our employees to foster
their loyalty to our Group. For examples, employee can enjoy discount
for treatment and products in our company. Basically, every rule in
the handbook is set in accordance with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to Employment Ordinance. With
our efforts made on regulation, no case of violation against the labour
rules occurred during the reporting period. The Group will continue to
strive to comply with the relevant laws and regulations

Health and Safety

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environmental Health and Safety Policy”,
no job is so important and no service so urgent, that we cannot take
time to perform our work safely, and in an environmentally
conscientious manner. The Group strives to provide staff with a safe
and healthy work environment and develop a safety awareness
among employees and others engaged in work, so that accidents
(personal injuries and property damage) and occupational illnesses
will be reduced to a minimum. In order to raise employees’ awareness
in maintaining health and safety issues, the Group offers safety
training programs and hazards measurement programs. Besides,
safety equipment is provided to the employees. Also, it is the
responsibility for the Group to identify and control safety, public
health, and environmental hazards associated with their operations
and work constructively with government agencies and others to
develop and implement laws, regulations, and standards to protect
public health, safety, and the environment.

During the reporting period, the Group was in strict compliance with
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and there was no related
work injuries or fatalities and no legal case regarding health and safety
brought against the Group.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training

The Group believes that providing training to our staff is also an
important factor in attracting and retaining employees. The Group
aims to facilitate personal and professional development enabling
individuals and groups to achieve their full potential at work according
to the Group’s “Staff Training and Development Policy”.

The Group is committed to provide professional trainings to our
trained therapists in order to provide quality services to our clients.
Our trainings included both theoretical and practical trainings and our
training program has been specifically formulated by our doctors and
training manager. We provide on the job training to strengthen the
quality of our trainings offered to our staff. We are of the view that the
ability to keep abreast of the latest trend in medical aesthetic services
and to offer quality service will impact our client traffic, revenue
growth and financial performance.

From time to time, our doctors attend industry conferences, seminars
and workshops in Hong Kong and overseas as well as seminars
organised by our suppliers on topics such as injection procedures
and energy-based procedures.

We require our newly recruited therapists to undergo a six-month
training programme provided by us prior to performing treatments as
agreed by the doctors for our clients.

In recognition of our achievement in manpower training and
development and in fostering an organisational culture conducive to
life-long learning, we were awarded under the ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme and Caring Company Logo during the
reporting period.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Labour Standards

According to “No Child Labour Policy”, the Group does not employ
any person below the age of eighteen years at the workplace and
prohibits the use of child labour and forced or compulsory labour at
all its units. No employee is made to work against his/her will or work
as bonded/forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment or
coercion of any type related to work. Employment contracts and
other records, documenting all relevant details of the employees,
including age, are maintained at all units and are open to verification
by any authorised personnel or relevant statutory body. The unit
provides an annual report to the functional head on any incidents of
child or forced labour. Periodic assessment is conducted. The human
resources department undertakes random checks of records
annually.

During the reporting period, the Group complied with the Employment
Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and did not
violated any relevant labour laws and regulations including child and
forced labour laws and regulations.

Operating Practice

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established “Procurement Policy and Guide to
Procedures” which aims to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations and appropriate social practices governing our
businesses, provide suppliers with equal opportunities for transactions
with the Group; and promote procurement activities based on mutual
understanding and trust. In order to manage the environmental or
social risks in the supply chain, we have strengthen the control in
procurement of treatment devices/consumables and skin care
products as below.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Treatment devices/treatment consumables

We place great emphasis on ensuring that treatment devices to be
introduced for use in our medical aesthetic centres are reliable and
capable of delivering desired results for our clients. To this end, we
have established policies and procedures to evaluate and assess
treatment devices. Our marketing and business development
department is primarily responsible for keeping abreast of the latest
technologies and conducting market research on the latest and
prevailing treatment technologies and skin care products. Periodic
meetings are held among our management, doctors and marketing
and business development department to discuss the latest
technologies and skin care products, during which our marketing and
business development department may recommend the types of
treatment devices to procure. From time to time, suppliers of
treatment devices visit us and demonstrate their treatment devices to
us, which may also provide us with a trial period during which we can
evaluate and assess the use and effectiveness of the treatment
devices.

When deciding whether to procure a new treatment device, we take
into account factors such as (i) whether it is approved by national
government agencies such as the Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) and/or whether such devices bear CE mark(s); (i) whether there
are similar devices on the market; (i) whether it is complementary to
our existing treatment offerings; and (iv) our internal test results. The
approval of our chief executive officer and doctors must be obtained
before we procure a new treatment device.

Skin care products

The skin care products offered by us are supplied by distributors and
manufacturers, all of which are Independent Third Parties. The
countries of origin of our skin care products include the United States,
[taly and France. We select and source skin care products carefully
based on factors such as the suppliers’ background, credentials and
reputation, product quality and cost. The approval of our chief
executive officer and doctors must be obtained before we take in any
new product for sale.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to offering an excellent customer experience
and ensuring that our products and services are safe and high-
quality. We adhere to applicable laws regulating health and safety
standards, as well as those governing testing, advertising and
labeling. The Group was in strict compliance with related laws and
regulations, including but not limited to Trade Description Ordinance,
Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance and Consumer Goods Safety
Regulation during the reporting period. Our aim is for our customers
to have confidence in our products and services, and sufficient
information to make informed choices. Therefore, the Group has a set
of policies and procedures to oversee and manage issues related to
responsibilities of our products and services.

Quality Assurance

Providing quality non-surgical medical aesthetic services is one of our
management priorities. We have adopted comprehensive and
stringent quality assurance and control measures throughout our
business processes that covers, among others, the following aspects:

Recruitment of professional staff

In selecting new doctors and therapists to join us, we assess, among
others, their academic and professional qualifications, years of
relevant experience as well as their character and integrity.

Performance of consultation and treatments

The carrying out of consultation services that involve the practice of
medicine, medical diagnosis, prescription of pharmaceutical products
and medicines (each as defined under the Pharmacy and Poisons
Ordinance (Chapter 138 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) and certain
types of treatments (such as injection of botulinum toxin type A and
dermal fillers) constitute the practice of medicine and therefore must
be carried out by registered medical practitioners pursuant to the
Medical Registration Ordinance (Chapter 151 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Our doctors carry out consultation services and such certain
treatment procedures which are specified under the relevant laws and
regulations as well as selective treatment procedures perceived by
our doctors as being high risk, whereas our trained therapists perform
other selective treatment procedures as directed by our doctors.
Based on our doctors’ professional experience and judgment on the
risk of severe complication, selective energy-based procedures are
performed by doctors only if there is potential risk of irreversible organ
or tissue damage including nerve injury, muscle burn, fat necrosis or
skin necrosis.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance (Continued)

Standard operation procedures and clear division of labour

We implemented standard operation procedures at our medical
aesthetic centres and a clear division of labour to improve operational
and administrative efficiency and enhance the quality of our services.
Our doctors (assisted by medical assistants) and trained therapists
are mainly responsible for performing treatments while our aesthetic
service specialists are mainly responsible for sales and promotion. To
monitor our client’s satisfaction towards the treatment received, we
contact the client within several days after the treatment by phone or
text message to gather his/her feedback. We maintain a log book on
feedback for management review. Such internal structure and well-
defined responsibilities are established for the purpose of segregating
the powers of operations, sales and client service to achieve effective
check and balance.

Customer Data Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and privacy is
the key principle for operation. We comply with Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance. According to the Group’s Staff Handbook,
employee is required protect all the customers’ information.
Information only can be used in authorized business activities. If
employee disclose those information to other parties, it is considered
as data theft. The related employee’s employment will be terminated
and report to police for prosecution.

Anti-Corruption

In the Group’s “Staff Handbook”, one of the most important rules that
the Group requires all members of staff to observe is that they must
maintain honesty, refuse corruption, refuse to accept kickbacks, and
they must not misappropriate the Group’s funds and properties, must
not abuse power for own interests, and that all gifts received must be
handed to the Group.

HEHEE)

R EE (E)

EREEE)

HZRE(F)

BT RS T

B BEBERT OB EIEEL BT KR
BT AR 48 RATEORR I IR F BP0 R
BEE - RIINE L (REBYEGY) REZ
JoammEE e BRTRE - MRMOEDR
BEETEEENERERE - AEATS YT
BESERNEEE  RAEEREERAIE
SREETAMRES AN ER Y REEE
BEGE—AREELAHHEEEEN - 2
URENBEBERPRS IETEEAD S
B WEREEBRENENUBRRERRE R
87 o

EPBIEEIRE

AEBBRE  BERREZNLEESEENERR
A o HPIE T EAZ R (FLER) 5R-H1) - RIBA
SENBTFM  EEFTEREMERTFPHE
e RERRBEERBEF A LER - IR
BEREMSTEEZETEMN SRR BEN
BUE - HRER QWM E  YERESREL

REE

AEBOTETFM P HPF—GREEN
RAIRAEBEERMAE TEABLARTH
B ERES - EREXOM - mANSHER
AEENESNPE - TMERECHNETE
RS AR BAERRA R MY A A E
o

2020 5 / SYPHEREBABRDR 57



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS- HERERBRE

Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Anti-Corruption (Continued)

The Group shall strive to protect and uphold Group’s and our own
reputation, professionalism and integrity. To this end, we shall avoid
obligations to customers or business associates resulting from
advantages, gifts or entertainment received in or due to our official
capacity which could compromise our position in any way or be
perceived by a third party to potentially compromise ourselves or the
Group. When we participate in any social or academic activities,
either in a personal or official capacity, we shall avoid any unbecoming
acts which will bring us or the Group into disrepute.

Employees could whistle-blow to the supervisor for the suspected
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering issues by email.
Information of the whistleblower is confidential. Once discovered and
confirmed, related personnel will be published or his/her employment
will be terminated. The Group will be report to Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) or other institution depends
on the cases. The Group was in strict compliance with Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance and there was no any legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees during reporting
period.

Community

Community Investment

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate.
The Group has adopted “Community Investment Policy”, it aims to
establish a comprehensive system to oversee the activities related to
community investment. The Group strives to develop long-term
relationship with our stakeholders and seek to make contributions to
programmes that have a positive impact on community development.

The Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
HK$29,000 during the reporting period (2019: HK$1,073,000).
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Update for Covid-19

In light of the outbreak of Covid-19 epidemic (the “Epidemic”) starting
from January 2020, the Group has paid attention to the progress of
the event and take the initiative to take the social responsibility of the
enterprise to help prevention and control the Epidemic.

The Company places the health and safety of its customers and staff
as its highest priority. On April 2020, in view of a direction (the
“Direction”) in the Government’s gazette in relation to certain premises
in accordance with the Prevention and Control of Disease
(Requirements and Directions) (Business and Premises) Regulation
(Chapter 599F of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Regulation”), the
board of directors of the Company (“the Board”) has decided that all
customer treatment centers of the Group will be closed during the
period as mentioned in the Direction, subject to any further extensions
that may be directed by the Government from time to time. The
Group’s other businesses remain unaffected.

Although the Group’s medical practitioners manage the day to day
operations at the Group’s customer treatment centers and provide
services and treatments not associated with those procedures
defined to be provided by beauty parlours under the Prevention and
Control of Disease (Requirements and Directions) (Business and
Premises) (Amendment) Regulation 2020 (including, but not limited
to, medical procedures, consultation & injection, medical aesthetic,
product sales and staff training), some of the other services and
treatments provided by the Group include procedures specified in the
Amendment Regulation, and they are carried out at the same
customer treatment centers of the Group.

T LB 2 ) B 1B 0
SERINTMAKE (B ]) 5202051 A

IR  ARBEHSEHERRTET - I
FERECEHEETABRBITED RIEHIE
Is o

ARmA—RBEEFPRETINREMZ2HE
B o 7020205 4 A - B IREEEED
55 699F B TAR M Z Bl E (RE KiER) (%
B R BFT) RPN ([ ZH ) EFBRT EMHBRE
ETHAOER(ER]D  BARFESES
([EFg]) BRTEHRIERATIR B R R EE
AEBENMATPEER O - WIREHRT A8
TEFEH R Mg — FIEREE - AERER
HEBHDRZ BN E -

BEASENBEERAEETFERET LN
B EE YRt E(2020 80 REHK R
(BRERIER) (R RERT) R RBIDIET
PR E BRI E N ZFEF BN IR X
BR(BEETRNEERRRF &R MHET
5 BEXE  EmHERBETHEI) - #EX
SEPTRENE T HEMRE LERZEEEER]
i‘ﬁ%ﬁfﬂﬂﬂﬁ’ﬁ%f’ﬁﬁ*ﬁfﬁ'ﬁﬁz?)’b&$$llﬂ
—BPEIEP LA

T o

2020 3R / SPEREEERAF 59



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS- HERERBRE

Update for Covid-19 (Continued)

Besides, during the temporary closure of our customer treatment
centers from 10 April 2020 to 7 May 2020 per the latest epidemic
control guidelines issued by the HKSAR Government, thorough
disinfection was carried out to provide the best treatment experience
for clients. Also, to safeguard the health of clients, staff and public,
the following hygiene measures are also adopted:

—  Customer are required to bring their own mask and wear a
mask in the centre;

—  Sanitary items are provided, such as disposable shoe covers,
sanitary floor mats and alcohol-based handrub etc.;

— Upon client’s arrival, the body temperature is measured and
health record has to be filled in. If client has respiratory
symptoms or body temperature higher than 37.5°C, treatment
appointment will be rescheduled to 14 days later;

— If client or someone who lives with client is returning from
outside HKSAR, including mainland China and overseas, client
can only visit our customer treatment centre after 14 days;

—  Crowd control measure is adopted. Upon client’s arrival, private
VIP room and treatment room will be arranged to ensure fewer
than 8 clients gather in public areas such as the lobby;

—  Public areas such as the lobby are disinfected every hour; and

— The room and related treatment equipment are cleaned and
disinfected thoroughly before and after the treatment.

The Board will continue to monitor the Epidemic situation closely and
continue to place the health and safety of its customers and staff as
its highest priority while ensuring compliance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations.
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED’S ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

EBHA XS ARA AINER -

e REamEES

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section Page

TEHE - -EFEH —REERBRERES =4z 0] B

A.  Environmental

B

Aspects Al: Emissions

A1 HER)
General Disclosure “Emissions” 47-49
—Re R [HER

KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data “Emissions” 48-49

BRBENIER YRR E AR B EE [HER)

A1.1

KPI' A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, “Emissions” 49
intensity

BRGEIIER RERBANENR(WER)EE [HER

Al.2

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, The Group generated no N/A
intensity significant hazardous waste

during the reporting period.

BRGEDIER MELREEEVESR(WER)BE REERGERRATEES TEA

A1.3 BERBEEEY -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, Recycled paper disposed at 50
intensity landfills — “Use of

Resources”

BRGEDIER MEAREEEVESR(WER)TBE ZENEERRRK

Al.4 —[BREA]

KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results “Use of Resources” 49-51
achieved
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A1.5
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page

TEHRE EEH —REEREARENESR E=1:0] B

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are “Emissions” 47-49
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
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A1.6 (EIVES

Aspects A2: Use of Resources

B A2 : BIRE A
General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 49-51
— MR [ &R

KPI' A2.1 Direct and indirect energy consumption by type in total “Use of Resources” 49

BRGENIER RENASHEEKEEERERS [ &R

A2.1

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources” 50

MRERIER BRKEREE [ &R

A2.2

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results “Use of Resources” 49-50
achieved

BRENIER ARG 8 RFEKR [ &R

A2.3

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that “Use of Resources” 50
is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved
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A2.4 SEIEETIES

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if “Use of Resources” 50
applicable, with reference to per unit produced
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A2.5
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Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section Page
TEHE -EEH —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH
Aspects A3: The Environmental and Natural Resources
[EHE A3 : RIERRARER
General Disclosure “The Environmental and 51
Natural Resources”
—R R [IRBERRAER]
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the “Emissions” & “Use of 47-51
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to Resources”

manage them
FRETUER HOXKIDHRBERRAEFRNEAFZEREENEREE [Hiw R [ERER]
A3.1 AR ENTTHY

B.  Social (Note a)

e (Mita)

Aspects B1: Employment and Labour Practices

EmB1 : BRERMESETIER
General Disclosure “Employment” 51-52
—RIXE [EfRE]

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and N/A
geographical region

BRBEHIEER  RIER - EBEERE - FiARI MR E DR B ER AN jiE

B1.1

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and The Group currently does N/A
geographical region not report on these

indicators.
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s BEEBMERZMBRARIAIRE -
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Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHRE EEH —REEREARENESR E=1:0] B
Aspects B2: Health and safety
EEB2: ke
General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 52
— R [fEEERs
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities No work-related fatalities 52
BRENIER BEIEERMILTHAB KL E ERTEREREHN
B2.1 BT EMH
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury No case of work injuries 52
BRESER RFIGEANIEDE BTSREZRE
B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures The Group currently does N/A
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored not report on this indicator.
BRENIEER RO BERRET 2R WREFERTRERS ASEBATERZESR TER
B2.3 A fELRE o
Aspects B3: Development and Training
[ETEBS : =Tl
General Disclosure “Development and Training” 53
—R = [ R
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained and employee category N/A
MRERER SIEEBSEREEES T3 A
B3.1
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender  The Group currently does N/A
and employee category not report on these
indicators.
MRERIER RUEMNREEERESD - BHEE KN TR AEBE AT ERZE  TEA
B3.2 EIREL®RE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section Page
TEHE -EEH —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH
Aspects B4: Labour Standards
EB4 : LT AR
General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 54
—MRIREE [ T8 |
KPIB 4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to “Labour Standards” 54
avoid child and forced labour
MRERIER  Hies BREENERARSE T REH ST [45 T8 ]
B4.1
KPIB 4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when “Labour Standards” 54
discovered
BRENIER  HEEERERERRER A @ISR S5 [55 T8 |
B4.2
Aspects B5: Supply Chain Management
EB5 : HrEsEE IR
General Disclosure “Supply Chain 54-55
Management”
—MRIKER [ E IR |
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by region The Group currently does N/A
not report on this indicator.
BRENIER RS HHEEREE REB AT ERZEST  TEA
B5.1 fELRE o
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number “Supply Chain 54-55
of supplies where the practices are being implemented, how Management”
they are implemented and monitored
BRGENIER HOBEREAHERNED  mERTEBENNHERE [ s E IR |
B5.2 B URBBEHNTRERTE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page

ITRER EFH - -REBERBARENER B HE

Aspects B6: Product Responsibility

[ETB6 : EmAaf
General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 56-57
— R EE [EmET]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls ~ The Group currently does N/A
for safety and health reasons not report on these
indicators.
FREDIER CEXCEXEMAHTEZEERREAMERKNES AEBENTERZSESE TER
B6.1 Lt e RS -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received The Group currently does N/A
and how they are dealt with not report on these
indicators.
BRGENIER BEEERERRBREORFERE AREE A REFEBRITEEZE  TEA
B6.2 EIRER RS -
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting The Group currently does N/A
intellectual property rights not report on these
indicators.
RRETUER g RREESERE EOIED REEB R EEEE  TEA
B6.3 EIRER RS -
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures “Product Responsibility 56-57
— Quallity Assurance”
BRESIER MIEERTREREREYER [EmETE — BRRE
B6.4
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, “Product Responsibility 57
how they are implemented and monitored — Customer data
Information Protection”
FRERIEER HEBEEERRERLBEE - URABERITRERFE [EmEE -
B6.5 B EUIRERHRE]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section Page

TEHE -EEH —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH

Aspects B7: Anti-corruption

EB7 : R&ES
General Disclosure “Anti-Corruption” 57-58
— R [RE)]

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices No concluded cases 58
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the case

BRESER RERPAEBETASEESRLTEEENETHA EEOBRERN

B7.1 EEDSEENEES

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing “Anti-Corruption” 58
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

FRERIER WP EER R R EIRT - ARBBERITRER A [REF]

B7.2

Aspects B8: Community Investment

JETH BS : HEREE
General Disclosure “Community Investment” 58
—MRIKER [tERE ]

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental “Community Investment” 58
concemns, labour needs, health, culture, sport)

BRENIER ZIER®SE(WHE REFH SHIFK - @2F e [TtRIgE ]

B8.1 25)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area “Community Investment” 58

BREDUER THIGABMSAER (NS ENER) [tERRE ]

B8.2

Note: P aE -

(a) Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, KPIs in this section are (@) B FHRAIM 27 - ANETBRENIEERERZER

recommended disclosures only.

FRTEEE ©

2020 3R / EHHEREEER AT

67



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 6 July 2016 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
medical aesthetic services and sale of skin care products.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 20 of
this annual report which forms part of this report of the directors.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s business. The following
are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.

Government Policies Risk

Following certain adverse incidents in relation to the beauty service
industry in recent years, the Hong Kong Government has been
reviewing the existing legal framework and considering tightening its
supervision over the beauty service industry by promulgating certain
laws and regulations to regulate, among other things, the types of
medical aesthetic procedures that should be performed by registered
medical practitioners. See “Regulatory Overview — Recent
Development in relation to Regulation of Medical Procedures and
Beauty Services, as well as Private Healthcare Facilities” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2016 for further
details.
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There is no assurance that the Hong Kong Government will not
impose more stringent laws, rules, regulations or industry standards
in connection with the provision of medical aesthetic services. Any
change in the regulatory framework may render it more restrictive for
us to conduct our business. There is also no assurance that we will
be able to adapt to such changes in a timely manner. In addition,
compliance with such new laws, rules, regulations or industry
standards may significantly increase our operating costs, which may
in turn lower our profit margins. Any of the above-mentioned
circumstances may materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Risk of Adverse Economic, Social or Political Conditions
All of our business operations are based in and we derive all of our
revenue from Hong Kong. Our business operations and the demand
for our medical aesthetic services are therefore subject to the
economic, social and political conditions in Hong Kong. Furthermore,
any incidence of social unrest, strike, riot, civil disturbance or
disobedience in Hong Kong may cause inconvenience to clients who
wish to visit our medical aesthetic centres and weaken their desire or
willingness to undergo medical aesthetic treatments. Any of the
above circumstances may have a material and adverse impact on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, during the year, a portion of our revenue was derived from
visitors and tourists from the PRC who do not reside in Hong Kong.
Any reduction in the spending willingness of such PRC visitors and
tourists and any decrease in the number of PRC visitors and tourists
to Hong Kong as a result of anti-mainland sentiment may significantly
reduce our revenue derived from such clients, which could materially
and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental protection
measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of resources.
These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental policies and
performance can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 45 to 67 of this annual report.
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Compliance with the Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up
to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material
breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the
date of this report.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff, customers and suppliers are
the key to our sustainable and stable development. We are
committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
89 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held on
Friday, 25 September 2020. A notice convening the meeting will be
issued and sent to the Shareholders in due course.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 22
September 2020 to Friday, 25 September 2020, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 21 September 2020.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 168. The summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2020, in the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of
the Company available for distribution to shareholders under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$55,970,000
(2019: HK$52,480,000).

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$29,000 (2019: HK$1,073,000).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2020, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole shareholder
of the Company by way of written resolutions passed on 19 December
2016 for a term of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2020.

BB
AEBRBEREATRFENCAHES &
ERBBEZHEHNE 168 A  HIEIW THEAK
REZGFREPBRRN D -

LN
AR FRARE L mEH) o

Al IR

M2020F3H31H " EFRAE - ARAIEE
FREHERREAIHIERTRENGEEA
55,970,000/8 7T (20194 : 52,480,000/ 7T) °

B
REBRFARNELRZEE R EMBIUA 29,000
T (20194F : 1,073,000 7T) ©

BB EE
AAREME R R R EERAA
AAR L PINRAERFIR 2B E R 2 B
BERAT - MASRSSRLE Y B
FERH -

BE  DEERES
HE2020F3A31HIEFE AR alskE T
B ARWEREE « &8 E L AR MEM
17 o

RERR Rt &

RAEHE—HERERTE ([BERERTE]) - &
NEIMME RN 2016 F 12 A 19 HAEE R
HEMFABERIRMZEE - BRABRE
FTEI B AREET T4 - BERRIERT EH = 2R
RGBTSR 26 o

oo 7T FESEE ARk 0 B 20204 3 A 31
B I & R TTE  BE AR A o

2020 3 / SYPEREBER DA

71



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save for the Share Options Scheme, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. MA Ting Wai Barry

Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln (appointed on 22 April 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. LI Wai Kwan

By virtue of article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and Mr. LI Wai Kwan will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and will, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

By virtue of article 83(3) of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln was appointed as new Director on 22 April
2020, he will hold office only until the forthcoming annual general
meeting and will be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

After the date of this report, Dr. LAM Ping Yan was appointed as new
director on 15 July 2020, he will hold office only until the forthcoming
annual general meeting and will be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to the Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Board considers them to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years commencing from the
date of the Listing and continuing thereafter until terminated by either
party by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from the date of the
Listing, provided that either the Company or the INEDs may terminate
such appointment at any time by giving at least three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Emolument Policy

We have established the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters,
including benefits in kind and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management, after consultation with the
chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer.

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will consider factors such as corporate and individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Other than operating a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the Group has not
operated any other retirement benefit schemes for its employees.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the Group
amounted to HK$2,115,000 (2019: HK$1,365,000) for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors from any liabilities and costs arising from the
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors and officers
liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its Directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

Biographical Details of Directors
Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 21 to 28 of
the annual report.
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Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2020, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the
Directors, the controlling shareholders and substantial shareholders,
neither themselves nor their respective associates (as defined under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules) had held any position or had interest in
any businesses or companies that were or might be directly or
indirectly competing with the business of the Group, or gave rise to
any concern regarding conflict of interest.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporation

As at 31 March 2020, interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follow:

a. Long positions in shares of the Company:

B A =

R2020F3A31H  MESE  #iEES -
TIRBRELETERFESHNEZSENBEA

(TER EMRBIESA0K) EEAEE XK

TERK Sk T RETE A B ok SR U S 75 2k

RNElFPEEE AL A R - ool M

ERREEEENREE -

R EE
EERFETHAEBRE QRS EFEE
ZEZRG - HEROREREIZER
R/HHKRE

M2020F3H31H  ARBIEERTE th
ABRARG S EEMBR AR (R RE
REAEEDI([# 5 REAE GG 1) EXVE) &9k
- HEARG REEZTR  HBEE()REES
NMEREEBIZEXVERE 7 R 8D ERAIE A )
B EmIOA R (BREREFES RAEK
PIB RGBS EFS R = K
B (i) IREBEEFREE K% 352K EF

RZIGFTIE B eSS AR « k(i) iR %
ETRAIM SR 10FT S M E BT AEZEFETT

BHER PR LET RIS AR B R AR
MIOKBIAT

a. REQRRDGHFE:

Percentage of

the Company’s

Number of issued

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held share capital
ARATC BT

EENE B HntE RGO & E RAMNBE DL
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (“Mrs. Gigi Ma”) Interest of a controlled 275,000,000 68.75%

corporation (Note 1)

R+ ([FRMmLL]) i EE R (1)
Note:
1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright

Group Holdings Limited (“Sunny Bright”), a company beneficially owned as
to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Ma Ting Keung, Patrick (“Mr.
Patrick Ma”). Mr. Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma. Therefore, Mrs.
Gigi Ma is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Sunny Bright
under the SFO.

BT -

1. 275,000,000 % A% 17 LA Y6 % 12 B 5 R A &)

(M%) —EaBERImAEREEREE
(f%ié’ﬁ?‘ﬁiﬁ DRI Bz B 50% K 50% 1#

RAENBBEET - HERELERFRINM
ﬁtﬁ’]@ﬁﬁ Hut - RIFE S MGG
BRI L WA /RS HENODEEN
AR o
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b. Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

b. RAEBEEROHNFE

Percentage of

the Company’s
Name of associated Capacity/nature of Number of issued
Name of Director corporation interest shares held share capital
AKAR BT
EEHE AR L B = B nttE FEROEE RANEIE
Mrs. Gigi Ma Sunny Bright Beneficial owner and 2 100%
interest of spouse
BRI+ e EnlEE AR BER

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of 1 issued ordinary
share of Sunny Bright, representing 50% of the issued share capital
of Sunny Bright. Mr. Patrick Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of
the other 1 issued ordinary share of Sunny Bright, representing the
remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Sunny Bright. As Mr.
Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma, Mrs. Gigi Ma is deemed to
be interested in all the interest registered in Mr. Patrick Ma’s name in
Sunny Bright. Accordingly, together with the 50% shareholding
interest in Sunny Bright registered in Mrs. Gigi Ma’s name, Mrs. Gigi
Ma is taken to be interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Sunny Bright.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or (i)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the person
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) or
company which were required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follow:

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2020, other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the following
persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the shares or
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or required to be recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company:

T ERRR AR E R MAERER D
2R R TORR

MR2020F3A31H * THAL(RRAREER
FEBITHABRIN KA REABRIEES &
HEIENE 386 IFEREATE 2 Bt asE
wRRBRWT

MEBEE - R2020F3A31H  BRARA
EEREBITHABN  TIAL BERA
DA SAR R RR (0 P HE B B IR IR 5 K B
EIEFIEXVERE 2 R 3D Em AR A H T A
RIEES RSG5 336 K EBATFEZ
Rpa) B frgEzE=AR

RAERTRGEE :

Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

shares held/ issued
Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested share capital
Ry 2] AARE BT
wEEB B HntE RO E RAENE DL
Sunny Bright Beneficial Owner 275,000,000 68.75%
S EnlaA
Mr. Patrick Ma Interest in a controlled corporation 275,000,000 68.75%
and interest of spouse (Note 1)
HiEoakE VRS A E s M R (M RE)
CITIC Securities Company Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 20,000,000 5%
(Note 2)
FEIEFR G AR A A ZirhlEE R (e 2)
Notes: fiEE -
1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright, a company 1. 275,000,000 & & 17 LA £ %2 (— 6 ER F5 229N o 2 +

beneficially owned as to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Patrick Ma. Mrs.
Gigi Ma is the spouse of Mr. Patrick Ma. Accordingly, Mr. Patrick Ma is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Sunny Bright under the SFO.

NEEBREED BB H 50% K 50% EmHI A F)
FEBRL - FRIMEZEREEREENTRE -
It RIBES RHEGR - FiERELERE RN
ERAENZROTEE#ES -
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2. Such 20,000,000 shares are registered in the name of CSI Capital Management
Limited. According to record, CSI Capital Management Limited is wholly owned
by CITIC CLSA Global Markets Holdings Limited. CITIC CLSA Global Markets
Holdings Limited is wholly owned by CLSA B.V. CLSA B.V. is wholly owned by
CITIC Securities International Company Limited. CITIC Securities International
Company Limited is wholly owned by CITIC Securities Company Limited. CITIC
Securities Company Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares held by CSI
Capital Management Limited for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020 and so far as known
to the Directors, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or
any Associated Corporation” above, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers
For the year ended 31 March 2020, the percentage of revenue
derived from our five largest clients in aggregate was less than 0.9%
(2019: 0.9%) of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, purchases from our largest
supplier accounted for approximately 15.9% (2019: 20.7%) of the
Group’s total purchases. For the year ended 31 March 2020, our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 53.3%
(2019: 60.6%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers or customers.
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Connected Transactions

The “related party transactions” as disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
do not constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

There were no other non-exempt connected and continuing
connected transactions during the reporting period.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float required by
the Listing Rules in the reporting period.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 December
2016, pursuant to the non-competition undertakings set out in the
deed of non-competition dated 19 December 2016, each of our
controlling shareholders, namely, Sunny Bright Group Holdings
Limited, Mrs. Gigi Ma and Mr. Patrick Ma (collectively the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have undertaken to the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) that, amongst other things, each of them
does not or will not, and will procure each of their respective close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate in, be
engaged, interested directly or indirectly, either for their own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of or for any other person in any
business in competition with or similar to or is likely to be in
competition with the business of the Group upon the Listing of the
Company. Details of the deed of non-competition are set out in the
paragraph headed “Non-Competition Deed” in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 December 2016.

The INEDs have reviewed the implementation of the deed of non-
competition and are of the view that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with their undertakings given under the deed of non-
competition for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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Equity-Linked Agreements
Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
29 to 44 of the annual report.

Event after the Reporting Period

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Hong Kong government required
all beauty parlours to close for 28 days from 10 April 2020 to 7 May
2020. Save as disclosed above, there was no significant event
occurred after the reporting period.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
LAl Ka Yee Gigi

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 15 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Miricor
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 89 to 167, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to the matter. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued) FERETEFE®)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BREITSE RPN EStNESERETSEE

Revenue recognition from prepaid packages

XK 8 PR A2 6 Y 55 AR

Revenue from treatment services is recognised when such ~ Our audit procedures included:

services have been rendered to customers. ° obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition policy in relation to prepaid packages;

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which are

non-refundable, are deferred and reported as contract e assessing the estimates used in the determination of

liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position. expected breakage amount such as historical
Customers who may not exercise all of the contractual experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages by
rights of the prepaid packages upon expiry of the service examining the related usage records and comparing
period, and such unutilised portion are referred to as to the actual usage records on a sampling basis;
breakage. and

The Group recognised an expected breakage amount as e testing the internal controls and checking the

revenue in proportion to the historical pattern of rights calculation of revenue recognised related to the
exercised by the customers. Upon expiry of the service unutilised portion of the expired prepaid packages
period, the unutilised portion of the prepaid packages are by examining the underlying sales contracts and
fully recognised in profit or loss. As at 31 March 2020, the related records on a sampling basis.

carrying amount of contract liabilities amounted to
HK$122,512,000. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
revenue recognised from treatment services and unutilised
prepaid packages amounted to HK$146,165,000 and
HK$10,436,000, respectively.

The determination of the expected breakage amount
involves management’s estimate based on the Group’s
historical experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages.
The recognition of revenue from the unutilised portion of
the expired prepaid packages involves significant
management’s judgement to determine the appropriate
timing when the obligations to provide services are
considered to be expired based on the Group’s forfeiture

policy.

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 5 and 22
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

BREESSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Other Information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and is
therefore the key audit matter. We describe the matter in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yen Kai Shun, Catherine.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

15 June 2020

88  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2020

ZHE BT A SRR AES
1T

HEBRESEARNEET  RARTHE
BHAGARBRENBHSAEE B
MR B - B PER B RS S
EEIE BRIEERERTANANBBEES
B SERRERNERT  mREAREHE
BB ERBREEEERNE TREBBE
EE AR - RIS TSRS D ERZ
=I5 .

HEARBIZBMBENEHRE AR ARE

eI

ZXKEsH MBI
HEDFAD
EBPIR
N1

s RE224E

202056 A15H



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEEsREMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BZE 202043 A31 HIEGFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B sE FHT F&TT
REVENUE g 5 176,529 154,695
Other income H AU A 5 4,139 2,570
Cost of inventories and consumables GFERBFEREA (17,473) (15,322)
Staff costs 8 TR (81,844) (63,733
Property rentals and related expenses LIE e E (22,471) (20,455)
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WEREETE
equipment (12,336) (11,222)
Other expenses A (28,664) (30,144)
Finance costs EURGID RN 7 (2,211) -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RREBE AR R 6 15,669 26,389
Income tax expense FriefiBsZ 10 (2,113) (4,591)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND ARATEE AES
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FERA
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE FEEZEWKE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY pabcl 13,556 21,798
EARNINGS PER SHARE AAAEBEREDS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BB AEG
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY #&RZRI
— Basic and diluted — BEARNEE 12 HK3.39 cents  HK5.45 cents
3.39381l 5.45 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e RN R
As at 31 March 2020
R 20203 A31H

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ih=s FET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE MR 13 39,491 46,270
Right-of-use assets TREEE 14(a) 50,310 -
Goodwill B 15 4,305 4,305
Deposits b 18 9,540 8,168
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE B 24 3,179 1,787
Total non-current assets EREEERE 106,825 60,530
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories FE 16 14,320 7,952
Trade receivables 5 EBERFK 17 7,974 26,002
Prepayments, other receivables and TEfS I8 - HAb U
other assets RN EMmEE 18 12,141 12,689
Tax recoverable A Y Bl 718 3,204 786
Pledged time deposits EHEATE BT 19 55,460 54,269
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSZEEY 19 157,327 119,197
Total current assets mMENEEBE 250,426 220,895
CURRENT LIABILITIES pE =R
Trade payables B FIER IR 20 338 1,316
Other payables and accruals E R R & A 21 6,067 12,259
Contract liabilities and deferred revenue BB ENELER S 22 135,675 118,057
Provision for reinstatement costs {B18 Rk AN B 23 1,825 433
Lease liabilities HEBE 14(b) 15,690 -
Tax payable FESFiTE 933 1,278
Total current liabilities R ESRE 160,528 133,343
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 89,898 87,552
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BREERRBAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 196,723 148,082
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B RE

As at 31 March 2020
202063 H31H

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FHET FHIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 24 1,594 1,645
Provision for reinstatement costs {B1E B AR B 23 4,085 4,711
Lease liabilities HEBE 14(b) 32,813 -
Total non-current liabilities BB EBRE 38,492 6,356
Net assets BEFE 158,231 141,726
EQUITY s
Issued capital EETIRA 25 4,000 4,000
Reserves EE 27 154,231 137,726
Total equity EEE 158,231 141,726
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry
BHImz L BEEEE
Director Director
2 E-

2020 F 3R/ EPEREEMBRAT 91



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBHR

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

Share
Issued  premium Merger  Retained Total
capital  account reserve profits equity
2RT 37 &bt =8 g
A BEE i g mE
Note HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000
s FET FET FET FHET FHET
(Note 27)
(H3E27)
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1H 4,000 67,788 4,995 43,145 119,928
Profit for the year and total FERMNREE
comprehensive income for FEWNEEE
the year - - - 21,798 21,798
At 31 March 2019 20193 H31H 4,000 67,788* 4,995  64,943* 141,726
Effect of adoption of RNE A S 4R
HKFRS 16 E£16HNTE 2.2 - - - 2,949 2,949
At 1 April 2019 (restated) P20195F4 A1 8 (K E51) 4,000 67,788 4995 67,892 144,675
Profit for the year and total FERMNREE
comprehensive income for ZEWEBEE
the year - - - 13,556 13,556
At 31 March 2020 720203 31 H 4,000 67,788* 4,995  81,448* 158,231
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$154,231,000  * ZEREBERPEEEAVUBRARRZEEHE

(2019: HK$137,726,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= Ao~ —1
12 \éiﬁﬁ ﬁi‘%‘%
For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5E FET Fi&T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBBRASRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax FRELAT 15,669 26,389
Adjustments for: TP ZIEFAE -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB NEREITE
equipment 6 12,336 11,222
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6 17,932 -
Interest income FEHA 5 (3,968) (2,509)
Finance costs BTG AR 7 2,211 -
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HEIETE - WE
property, plant and equipment, net M EIEE BEFE 6 - 1,761
Impairment of trade receivables, net B 5RO E T 6 2 26
44,182 36,889
Increase in inventories FEIEM (6,368) (8,733)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & 5 FEUBE ZUR A (3&0) 18,026 (5,859
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERFIE - HAa BRI R
other receivables and other assets Ha&EERD,(3Em) 673 (56,303
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables Z S ENBETUE N CRd) (978) 611
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HbEMERR N ESTE R
and accruals #an, Cld) (3,533) 5,876
Increase in contract liabilities and SRBERELEIZIZM
deferred revenue 17,618 25,696
Decrease in provision for 1E18 B AR B4 Rt
reinstatement costs = (717)
Increase in pledged time deposits B K18 T BRTF 3 N (1,191) (2,442)
Cash generated from operations KEEBREENERS 68,429 51,018
Interest received BUEFE 3,606 2,628
Interest paid ERFE (2,211) -
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net BNBEENGHFE (6,319) (7,047)
Net cash flows from operating KEEEMERERE
activities FER 63,505 46,599
CASH FLOWS FROM REZDFFRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYE BELRXEEER
plant and equipment (8,508) (37,789)
Deposits paid for the purchase ofitems  EEY - MENERFHEEEH
of property, plant and equipment BfRe (1,495) (45)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - WERRHEER
property, plant and equipment FriS5008 - 53
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time A EEA R R E|HI B BB =18 A
deposits with original maturity of more Ry IR F HAE R
than three months when acquired B, (3Ehn) 36,125 (75,408)
Net cash flows from/(used in) WAEEE(FTA)
investing activities RenEFH 26,122 (113,189)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
o miﬁﬁl)lbéﬂs—%

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FERT FHEIT
CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ®EZEFENEESRE
ACTIVITY
Principal portion of lease payments HERZHAS B (15,372) -
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RE& RIREEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ', R B8 74,255 (66,590)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HIEE MIEEEED
of year 11,319 77,909
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S XHWRERRLZEY
END OF YEAR 85,574 11,319
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASH B a2 RELSZEWEL
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B 2 AT
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITE 7,321 11,319
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 E& A B R F HH =
maturity of three months or less THBA=EAN
when acquired EIEIE HER 78,253 -
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ FABE A B R 2 H B
maturity of more than three months HBiE=1E A&
when acquired IR E HATE K 71,753 107,878
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ERE IEARK AT
in the consolidated statement of ReRBEeEEY
financial position 19 157,327 119,197
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 & A B R 5/ H B
maturity of more than three months HBiE=1E A&
when acquired R IR T BRI 5K (71,753) (107,878)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated meEBReRERMIEE K
in the consolidated statement of REEEY
cash flows 85,574 11,319
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information 1. R REEER

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability Apala—HERSHESEMAIAE
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office BREBRAT - RAAEMPIEEH
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. 1 & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
principal place of business of the Company is located at Room Cayman Islands © N2 Al &) = B & ¥ i
1605, 16th Floor, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton Road, BN BB ESEBE 77 RSB L
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. 16121605 = °

The Company is an investment holding company and the RANRABIREERAT - AR BME
Company’s subsidiaries were principally engaged in the N TERNEANERHEBEZIARE
provision of medical aesthetic services, and the sale of skin care NMIHEEBEMR ©

products in Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding company EFRAE AR EEERA R RE
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is Sunny BIERG N R B AR AT (—ER
Bright Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the REBEREZEEFMANAAR]) -

British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries MEARZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARAREBWB AR ZFHBOT ¢
follow:

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARREERER D
Place of
incorporation Issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
At E R BRI
A% =ES R EERRE B MiE TEEER
Coresmax Group British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited (‘BVI")
REBRUHES 1% RERR
([RERXEE])
Miricor Beauty (BVI) Limited BVI USS$1 100 - Investment holding
HERAHE 1% REER
G Max Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
B 18T RUERRY
Miricor Beauty (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Sale of skin care products
EMER (FB)ERRA B 1B HEREEM
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
Limited aesthetic services
B 1B REBEXARG
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

1.  Corporate and Group Information (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1. ReINEEER &)
MEATZER ()

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

RAREERERDH
Place of
incorporation Issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
A E R BRIT
a8 EXHH EBERRA E# BE TEER
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(Central) Limited aesthetic services
B 1T REBEXARG
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(CWB) Limited aesthetic services
B 1T REBEXARHG
CM Technology Development ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
Limited services
B 1T REEERRS
CMIP Limited BVI USS$1 - 100 Owner of trademarks
LREBR AT EBRAHE 1% BIRHEA A
Cos Max E-Commerce Limited? Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
B 1T REEERRY
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$300,000 - 100  Provision of medical
(TST) Limited aesthetic services
B 300,000 7T REBEXARG
Vitae Wellness Beauty Limited® Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of medical
aesthetic services
B 1T REBEXARG

(i) Formerly known as Cos Max Academy Limited

(i) Formerly known as Gigi’s Secret (TST) Limited

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had issued any debt
securities at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation 21 fRBIEAE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

WEMBERR VBB EGAAG
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEAE (#)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 2.2 &35 & 55 2 &

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments Prepayment Features with
to HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
to HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments Long-term Interests in Associates
to HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
and HKAS 23

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS
16, the adoption of the above new and revised standards has
had no significant financial effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases
as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as
in HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of 1 April
2019. Under this method, the standard has been applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial adoption
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at 1 April 2019, and the comparative information for
2019 was not restated and continued to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset. The Group elected to use the transition practical
expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that
were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered
into or changed on or after 1 April 2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for its medical aesthetic centres,
office premises, a car park space and certain office equipment.
As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either
finance leases or operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16,
the Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for
two elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected
on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12
months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term
commencing from 1 April 2019, the Group recognises
depreciation of the right-of-use assets and interest accrued on
the outstanding lease liabilities as finance costs.

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019. The right-
of-use assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the leases recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before 1 April 2019.
The right-of-use assets also included the net carrying amount of
reinstatement costs in relation to the Group’s leased properties
recognised previously under leasehold improvements that were
reclassified from property, plant and equipment.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately in the statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (Continued)
Impact on transition (Continued)
The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with a
lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application

° Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics

Financial impact at 1 April 2019
The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April
2019 was as follow:
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Increase/
(decrease)
#h, CRL)
HK$’000
FET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment W - B R (3,311)
Right-of-use assets FREEE 60,415
Total assets wEE 57,104
Liabilities =R
Lease liabilities HeEaE 56,814
Other payables and accruals HEMENFIERETER (2,659
Total liabilities BafE 54,155
Equity xR
Reserves i 2,949
Total equity = BE 2,949
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 2.2 @55 KR 2 & 8) (@)

(Continued)
Financial impact at 1 April 2019 (Continued) R2019F4 51 AT E (&)
The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to the operating R2019F4 A1 HHHEE B EEHN2019
lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 are as follow: FIH3 B EHERELRNT ¢
HK$’000
FHET
Operating lease commitments MR2019F 3831 BH 63,334
as at 31 March 2019 REBEERE
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases i : EA%5 HATH & & T4 FH HAR 2020 £
and those leases with a remaining lease SAB1HKZRIERNEE
term ended on or before 31 March 2020 MMEEEEEHREFBREAE
and leases of low-value assets (847)
62,487
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as 7220199 4 A 1 B IEFHig S 4.24%
at 1 April 2019 fEEN X
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 MN2019F4 A1 BEHEAE 56,814
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EREMERAKRERZEBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to
focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected
by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FEEFTHNERE

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assets takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and deferred tax assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

@iy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follow:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

or 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Treatment devices 20%
Tools and equipment 25%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer equipment 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the underlying lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

()

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of
other equipment that are considered to be of low value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
(Continued)
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

24 TESHHERBE @)

ETREEE)

NEwARTE(E)
AEBEESHEENEBERNERE
AHREREMEEESHMEEN TN - ¥
BEABTHERESERBNRRELD
EE%/IILE A ﬁ%%ﬁﬂé?@zlfltﬁ%
BBMERAD BN EN SR EEAR
EeREENKBAEHNERESREREN
ZEBEATRA -

FIBAERTABERLENEREE
RS (AAREEAREEXLESR
EZR)ER UERNTABEHHER
BEM SR LIE R R TR HBRARS
BENTREEBEIHLE -

REBHERAGENEREENRETE
(EBIH)

REHRAENSREERRERAE
BRAZFOXETE - XA TRE - R M B

BREERILFER  (ENSRERRIE
ﬁT/iq] EEMJ\ °©
RIEISRMEE

EMEE(K(NER) EREEN—ED
a—m&«uﬁ BMEEN—FD)ETIIE
TS EARR LR (AR BRAKE R
RAMBRARIIER)

e WHZEBEEMGSRLAENEND
& ¢ 3%

e AEECHEBHWNZEEMSHE
TRENEN  HERE-IAHE
EER S Y Eﬁiﬁk.ﬁe—rﬁ
E-FRHENMEHReRENE
F B@QAEEEERLZEERAN
o R KRB b )ﬁﬁljf
BEEIREZEERAKD
K [B1 4 - @E@}%EQQEE’H@%U
T -

2020 3 / SYPEREBER DA

115



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group may consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials and other direct costs. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 SR R Y =
For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.4 TESEHBERBE (&)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when

control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at

an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group

expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(@)

®)

Provision of medical aesthetic services

Revenue from treatment services, medical consultation
services, prescription and dispensing of medical products
are recognised when the services have been rendered to
customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which are
non-refundable, are deferred and reported as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Customers who may not exercise all the
contractual rights of the prepaid packages upon expiry of
the service period, and such unutilised portion are referred
to as breakage. The Group recognised an expected
breakage amount as revenue in proportion to the
historical pattern of rights exercised by the customers.
Upon expiry of the service period, the unutilised portion of
the prepaid packages are fully recognised in profit or loss.

Sale of skin care products

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
clients.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly

discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected

life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, costs
incurred to obtain a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if the costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
pattern of recognition of the revenue to which the asset relates.
Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Foreign currency transactions

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.

Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition from unutilised prepaid packages
The recognition of revenue from the unutilised portion of the
expired prepaid packages involves significant management’s
judgement to determine the appropriate timing when the
obligations to provide services are considered to be expired
based on the Group’s forfeiture policy and hence the
recognition criteria for the related revenue are met in
accordance with the accounting policy for revenue recognition
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Judgement (Continued)

Revenue recognition from unutilised prepaid packages
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of contract liabilities
was HK$122,512,000 (2019: HK$95,859,000). During the year
ended 31 March 2020, revenue recognised from unutilised
prepaid packages amounted to HK$10,436,000 (2019:
HK$3,336,000).

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Utilisation pattern of medical aesthetic services
Customers who may not exercise all the contractual rights of
the prepaid packages upon expiry of the service period, and
such unutilised portion are referred to as breakage. The Group
determines the expected breakage amount with reference to
the Group’s historical experience on the utilisation of prepaid
packages. Estimates of expected breakage amount are
sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Group’s past
experience may not be representative of the actual outcome in
the future.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are included in note 15 to the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e. customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the medical aesthetic services sector, the historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs such as market
interest rates and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates.
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Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from change or improvements in the provision of
services, or from a change in the market demand for the service
output of the asset, the expected usage of the asset, the
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance of
the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Adjustment of depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period based on changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Operating Segment Information

The Group has one reportable operating segment, namely the
non-surgical medical aesthetic services segment, and is
principally engaged in the provision of medical aesthetic
services and the sale of skin care products in Hong Kong.
Information reported to the Group’s management, for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment,
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated and therefore no discrete
operating segment financial information is available. Accordingly,
no operating segment information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

4. QOperating Segment Information (Continued) 4,

Information about geographical areas

Since all of the Group’s revenue and profit were generated from

the provision of medical aesthetic services and the sale of skin

care products in Hong Kong and all of the Group’s non-current
assets were located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31
March 2020 and 31 March 2019, no geographical segment
information in accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

is presented.

Information about major clients

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single client of the
Group has accounted for over 10% of the Group’s total revenue
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, no
information about major clients in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments is presented.

5. Revenue and Other Income 5.
An analysis of revenue is as follow:

LENHER )

EER
HRASEEMNEHREMEMEERE
BRHBEXARGREEEEERN
EA - BASEEREZE202043 H31H
M2019F 3 531 HIEFERNEBIERS
BEVMNRES WU EREEEVH
MELERESREESF 2 ME D F

FEEFER

HZE 202093 A31 H %2019 3 A31 H
IEFE - BRAEERFAME—F P
EHEEEN NI EBRAEBE R
#AI10% » A MARB BB S m S 2
B8R EEDH 2NN EERFER

W M E A UTA
Wzs REMBASHTIT -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Revenue from contracts EFEHWE
with customers
Treatment services B2 RS 146,165 138,960
Skin care products EEEM 18,636 10,485
Medical consultation services BB RS 138 266
Prescription and dispensing of Ba 77 M e 22 PR 75
medical products 1,154 1,648
Revenue recognised from BRRAREAENER
unutilised prepaid packages pdl & 10,436 3,336
176,529 154,695

2020 3 / SYPHEREBAR DA

129



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

5. Revenue and Other Income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregated revenue information

5.

WS REMIA &)
EEAHKE
(i) DFUZER

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Types of goods or services EmRSREEE
Sale of skin care products HEEEESD 18,636 10,485
Provision of medical aesthetic IR EEXARBE
services 157,893 144,210
Total revenue from contracts BEA MBI
with customers 176,529 154,695
Timing of revenue recognition U LA
Goods or services transferred TR EEE R RS
at a point in time 19,928 12,399
Services transferred over time R FE 8 R AR T 156,601 142,296
Total revenue from contracts ERA#BKE
with customers 176,529 154,695
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TEBERAREHEZN LSS

recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

B ARBEAARSHINGH
BiE:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue recognised that was SFARSHUENEED
included in contract liabilities at ERERIE -
the beginning of the reporting
period:
Treatment services B2 R 45,656 45,338
Skin care products EEESR 4 3
Revenue recognised from unutilised R AR AIENER 2 s
prepaid packages 9,504 3,241
55,164 48,582
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5. Revenue and Other Income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of medical aesthetic services

The performance obligation associated with treatment
services is satisfied over time when the services are
rendered. The performance obligations associated with
medical consultation services and prescription and
dispensing of medical products are satisfied at the point
in time when the services are rendered.

Sale of skin care products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the skin care products and payment is mainly on cash
and/or credit card settlement, except for corporate
customers, where payment is due within 2 to 30 days

5.

WS R EMIA (&)
BEASHWEE)

(ii)

BHEE
FRATNEEREHNR AR
™

TERBEBX TR

HEIZ ARG A B B 4 B RN RIS
SRR R REENX - EEEA A
AR A Ko B2 77 I Fe BEBR 7% A R e B
MEERIRHIRG R — B B E
B o

H R Em
BRAREIRREEEREERK -
MARDEBUARS K HERFR
BE - ENFRRMEFT2E30K
MBI D EFFERIN -

from delivery.

An analysis of other income is as follow: EMUWADHTIT ¢
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT

Other income Hgug A

Bank interest income RITH B A 3,968 2,509
Others Hith 171 61
4,139 2,570
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6. Profit before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

6. BRTLAE A
74 B B AT R M DR TR B 4
i -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Minimum lease payments under REELEHEZHE
operating leases HER = 16,540
Lease payments not included in the TErAMHERGETEZ
measurement of lease liabilities HER 246 -~
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERAAY (TEREES
Directors’ remuneration (note 8)): B (B5E8)) -
Salaries, bonuses and other e A R HEAERL
allowances 73,117 49,428
Retirement benefit scheme R EIER
contributions (defined (EREHFGETED)
contribution scheme) 2,097 1,347
75,214 50,775
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR € 1,650 880
Depreciation of property, plant and VI BB REREITE
equipment 12,336 11,222
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 17,932 -
Impairment of trade receivables, net 2 S W RFUREF 58 2 26
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE M E - R N RE
property, plant and equipment, net HEBEBFE = 1,761
Foreign exchange differences, net ME W 2 R HER 5 7
7. Finance costs 7. BFEEAAN
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEREE 2,211 -
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8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EXM=
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BEEEHMAXTSMAER AR ([#B
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock FrESEFTRE - BEERAEHE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), 383(1)@) * (b)* ) R GERAGI(BEE
section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies HRAZEREE)RUE2DHREY
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of NEEESMMESLOT -

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follow:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Fees we 612 540
Other emoluments: HEMEE
Salaries and allowances e MOERL 6,000 2,400
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R 4R3E 5T 24t 2k
(defined contribution scheme) (EREFETED) 18 18
6,018 2,418
6,630 2,958
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BULFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNMBILIERITES I
during the year were as follow: ST
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David B Y o A 204 180
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo ERRAN ST 204 180
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FREERE 204 180
612 540
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRN - WEE R EMER T B IE
independent non-executive directors during the year PITES2B& (20195 : &) o
(2019: Nil).
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 8. EXEME @
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind contributions Total
& 28 BHREF
e RENEA FTEMR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr TAET FEr FET
Year ended 31 March 2020 HZ202053831BLLEE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi RN £ - 6,000 18 6,018
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry BEERE = - - -
- 6,000 18 6,018
Year ended 31 March 2019 HZ2019F3A3ALEE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi R 2 £ - 2,400 18 2,418
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry EREEELE - - - -
- 2,400 18 2,418

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining

FA - AEEREREMESIA
EREE - EAMARERSMA
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2019: NEE % 7 EE) sk BB S (2019
NiD- T F)-

There were no arrangement under which a Director RER - WETREEREXRE
R EE A B & B9 & BE (20194 ¢

z)

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2019: Nil).
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees
The five highest paid employees included one (2019: one)
Director, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining four (2019:

hesaEiEE

hE&mHiEE BIE— % (20194
—B)EZ HFMFEHN LXHES .
HEME (2019F : MR FEEESEaH

four) non-director highest paid employees are as follow: B B = BIEFIS T ¢
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Salaries and allowances e KoL 15,535 16,750
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R f@FIET 214 2% 63 72
15,598 16,822

The number of the non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follow:

FHNFUATHENGFEERSHHIE
BN T

Number of employees

BEAH

2020 2019

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T % 1,500,000 % 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T & 4,500,000 78 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 % 7T, & 5,000,000 8 7T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 /& 7T % 5,500,000 78 7T 1 2
4 4
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10. Income Tax Expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime effective from the year of assessment
2018/2019. The first HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of
assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

10. FT1SRIF 2

EBFERIIBEFARSEEENG
AT R OB E A 1216.5% (20194 ¢
16.5%) TR KT IR e - i AEE —H
M@~ aIBR AN - 2R A A E2018/2019
REFERERMFESHRAHE T
LEBIRERE - ZMB A A& 2,000,000
7L (2019 4F : 2,000,000 7T ) fiE :f 7 0%
F128.25% TR R M - R T A ERBL
s K B3 16.5% BV B R 45 o

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FaExT FH&TT
Current BN HA
— Charge for the year — FRXZH 3,559 5,222
— Underprovision/(overprovision) — BAFERETR/
in prior years (EBEERAE) (3) 7
Deferred tax (note 24) EEFLTE (M 5E24) (1,443) (638)
Total tax charge for the year FRBIA H AR5 2,113 4,591

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax expense at the
Group’s effective tax rate is as follow:

BEBEERERERRAENED
IR H B AR B BB R E RO
A HEHERIAT -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before tax B 15t A A 15,669 26,389
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BETERLE16.5% 5Tt 2,585 4,354
Adjustments in respect of current tax FBEFEENAIFIE
of previous years ER AR () /
Income not subject to tax BARTUA (654) (416)
Expenses not deductible for tax ATHOF A &2 475 798
Tax losses not recognised RERZFIBEE = 2
Temporary differences not recognised RIERZ R ZEER - 3
Others EHAh (290) (157)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BRASEERMEGFERIA D 2,113 4,591
11. Dividend 11. K&
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 HE20200F3A31BIFEE - BRSNS
March 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed since the SHEZRIREMNIEE  BREHKRURIE

end of the reporting period (2019: Nil).
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12. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary 12. ARRIEBRERFE ARG
Equity Holders of the Company TR A
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based FREARBFHNSEIIBBEANA R EIE
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders A% #E 25 B A FE 4G E % ) 13,556,000
of the Company of HK$13,556,000 (2019: HK$21,798,000), BT (20194 : 21,798,00078 7T ) M F K
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of B 3175 AR AY hn#E 19 £ 400,000,000
400,000,000 (2019: 400,000,000} in issue during the year. A% (20194F : 400,000,0000% )5t & B H o
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue HZE2020F3 A31 HNX2019F3 A31 H
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. FEE  AREBWED /TEL#H SR

A% -
13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. W% - BE L& E
Leasehold Fumiture ~ Treatment Tools and Office Motor ~ Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices  equipment  equipment vehicles  equipment Total

BENERE  HERKE RERE IERRE HOERE i EkRA it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR TiEn TR TR TR TR TR

31 March 2020 2020537318
A1 Apr 2019 (restated): 201954 A1H
(mE5) :
Cost A 34438 1,706 38,839 3,200 397 2,351 4457 85,388
Accumulated depreciation  Z3TE (10,736) (649) (25,400) (1,222) (330) (1,867) (2,224) (42,429)
Net carrying amount FREE 23,702 1,058 13,437 1,978 67 484 2,233 42,059

A3t March 2019, netof  R2019F3A31R

acoumulated depreciaion 2B BT E 27,013 1,058 13,437 1,978 67 484 2,233 46,270
Effect of adoption of FnEAu KR E
HKFRS 16 ER (8,311) = = = = = = (3,311)

A1 Apr 2019 (restated) 201954 A1H

(&7 23,702 1,058 13,437 1,978 67 484 2,233 42,959
Addttions e 732 546 5,802 472 134 - 1,182 8,868
Depreciation provided during /i (&
the year (5,361) (336) (4,981) (696) (40) (126) (79) (12,336)
At 31 March 2020, net of R2020%E3A31 8
accumulated depreciation BB EHTE 19,073 1,68 14,258 1,754 161 358 2,619 30,491
At 31 March 2020: R2020%E3A31 8 :
Cost s 35,170 2204 44,641 3672 531 2,351 5639 94,228
Accumulated depreciation  Z3f#7E (16,097) (956) (30,383) (1,918) (370) (1,993) (3,020) (54,737)
Net carrying amount FEFE 19,073 1,268 14,258 1,754 161 358 2,619 39,491
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 13. W% ~ WBE L& E @
Leasehold Fumiture Treatment Tools and Office Motor Computer

improvements  and fixtures devices equipment equipment vehicles equipment Total

BEmE%E  KERKE BREE IARGE BAER ot EHRE Eh

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TETL TEL TEL TETL TEL TEL

31 March 2019 2019538318

At 1 Apr 2018 Ro018E4B1R
Cost A 11,617 800 32,562 1,728 18 2,351 2,999 52,075
Accumulated depreciation ZiiNE (@,747) (499) 21,085) (1,269) 1) (1,397) (1,741) (35,735)
Net carmying amount FEFE 1870 301 11497 443 17 954 1258 16,340

At 1 Apri 2018, net of ROBE4A1R

acoumulated depreciation BB Z:HE 1870 301 11497 443 17 954 1258 16,340
Addtions FE 30,583 992 7576 1,756 381 - 1678 42966
Depreciation provided during R ER

the year (379) (227) (5,559 (158) (331) (470) 687) (11,209)
Disposalurite-off e/ (1,644) G} (83 (63) - - (16) (1,814)

At31 March 2019, netof 201953831 -

accumulated depreciaion BB ZHHE 21013 1,058 13,437 1978 67 484 2,233 46,270
At 31 March 2019: R2019E3A31R -

Cost A 39,149 1,706 38839 3200 397 2351 4457 90,099

Accumulated depreciation  Z37E (12,136) (648) (25,402 (1,229) (330) (1,867) (2,224) (43,829)

Nt carrying amount FESE 27013 1,088 13437 1078 67 484 2233 46270
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14. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for its medical aesthetic centres,
office premises, car park spaces, warehouses and certain office
equipment used in its operations. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 month to 6 years. Certain
office equipment has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is
individually of low value. There is a lease contract that includes
variable lease payments which are further discussed below.

(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follow:

14, FE

REBEREBAA
AEBEREBEEXETHRL WRAEY
X FES REREZEMAETHA
EREFEHESD - WEMEBER
BNF—EAZRF - ETHAERE
HEIA12EASKU TR, SHEBEBEE
B TXHE-—FrwmESUNEREN
ROHESK -

(@) FEAEEE
AEENEREEEREERTR
ZENNT -

Leased

properties

HEWE

HK$°000

FET

As at 1 April 2019 M20195F4 A1 H 60,415
Additions NE 8,309
Lease modification MEBE] (482)
Depreciation charge WEER (17,932)
As at 31 March 2020 202043 A 31 H 50,310
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14. Leases (Continued) 14. HHE &)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBIEAERBA (E)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follow:

HERBKREELRFAZENT

HK$’000
FET
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 MR2019F 4 A1 HRAREAE 56,814
New leases e 7,543
Accretion of interest recognised during F TR EIG N
the year 2,211
Lease modification MEEE] (482)
Payments (N (17,583)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 720204 3 A 31 BREEE 48,503
Analysed into: DA
Non-current portion EMBNEL 32,813
Current portion mEnEs 15,690
48,503

HEaBEIHO MR EREN T
35 EE o

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
35 to the financial statements.
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14. Leases (Continued)

14, HE#®)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) NEBEAEBA(E)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c)

leases are as follows:

REGRERAEBEFHENSEN
T

2020
HK$’000
FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEFE 2,211
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 17,932
Expense relating to short-term leases and other %2 EATE & I 62 T HH BAR 2020 FF
leases with remaining lease of terms ended on or SAB31HEZATHERK
before 31 March 2020 and of low-value assets REBEEEMEMEERBRY
(included in property rentals and related expenses) (5t A% 4 RAE@RY) 188
Variable lease payments not included in Tt AHEAGHES
the measurement of lease liabilities AEREENZGIAMERS R
(included in property rentals and related expenses)  fHEARI ) 58
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RER R 20,389

The Group leased certain medical aesthetic centre which
contain variable lease payment terms that are based on
certain percentage of revenue of the operations being
undertaken therein pursuant to the terms and conditions
as stipulated in the rental agreement. There are also
minimum annual base rental arrangements for these
leases.

The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are
disclosed in notes 29(b) and 32(b) to the financial
statements, respectively.

AEBEHEETESEXAPL K
REESAEEENKER BN
FISARIRA E 9h 3 5T B A9 R S 15
o EAREEHNRSEETED
at® - ZFHETEREFEE
AIEELHE -

FAER R4 K& & RFES
MAEFBRARIIRES R 2RI
B 765 3R 2R M 5F 29 (b) K2 32(b) R 2 85
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15. Goodwill 15. &
HK$'000
T
Cost and carrying amount at 1 April 2018, M2018%F4H1H 2019 3H31H -
31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 2019%F 4 A1H 20203 A31BH
PR B SRR 4,305

On 26 December 2009, the Group acquired the business of
Health Max Laser and Medical Skin Care Limited (“Health
Max”), a company controlled by Mr. Lai Ying, the sibling of Ms.
Lai Ka Yee Gigi. Health Max was engaged in the provision of
medical aesthetic services.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill of HK$4,305,000 acquired through business
combination has been allocated to the non-surgical medical
aesthetic service cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a 24-month period. Assumptions were
used in the value in use calculation. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

o Revenue is estimated based on the business trend in the
industry of medical aesthetic operation, historical average
spending per client and client cover, taking into account
the number of treatment rooms in each medical aesthetic
centre, centre locations, market conditions and economic
outlook.

° Cost of inventories sold is estimated based on the rate of
increase in revenue and the expected market conditions.

° The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the 24-month period is 3% for each reporting
period.

o The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the cash-generating unit. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 11% (2019:
14%).
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16. Inventories 16. 78
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Skin care products EEEM 11,447 3,978
Consumables and other supplies VB R S H A o 2,873 3,974
14,320 7,952
17. Trade Receivables 17. EZREUERR
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET Fi&TT
Credit card receivables ERARERERR 7,921 25,965
Others H 81 63
8,002 26,028
Impairment A (28) (26)
7,974 26,002
The Group’s trading terms with its clients are mainly on cash AEBEARPHORZBEREZARS
and/or credit card settlement while the trading terms with its k/SKERAFEE mMEESERFH
corporate customers are on credit. The credit period is generally RPGEHBEERZRE - BESRIEEL
2 to 30 days for credit card settlement for the respective ERREENEER ﬂﬁﬁ'ﬁQiSO B
financial institutions and up to 60 days for corporate customers. MECEZFNEEHRZEEZ AE60H - K
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding 5 B B R A B4 R ER Y FE U BR 3K
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are NEREREEERR aREEETH
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not BHRHER FAEEVEFREZESE
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade WER KA B A R Btz A
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. BER - BHRBERRTEE -

2020 3R / EHHEREEER AT

143



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

17. Trade Receivables (Continuead)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follow:

17.

BRI (&)
RIBEIR > B EKEZIREER
REMBEBEEEORRINET

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FETT

Within 1 month —@AAR 7,886 23,992
1 to 3 months —Z2={@A 70 1,082
Over 3 months BE={1EA 18 28
7,974 26,002

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follow:

B RYGRFOREERBENZBNT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

At the beginning of the year Jr = )| 26 -
Impairment losses, net (note 6) B E B (M 6) 2 26
At the end of the year RER 28 26

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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17. Trade Receivables (continuead)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2020

17.

BRI (&)

TERHIIBLAE EE 5 8 U R B

wRENEERRNER

A 2020%3H31H

Past due
B
1t03 Over
Current months 3 months Total
Mg —-Z=@EA BB=@EA et
Expected credit loss rate TBEEEEEX 0.35% 0.62% 0.62% 0.35%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) EEREE (T T) 7,922 61 19 8,002
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BHEEER
(F#&T) 28 - - 28
As at 31 March 2019 20195 3H31H
Past due
eIl
1to3 Over
Current months 3 months Total
Mg —z2=@A HBBE=@EA @5t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEX 0.10% 0.10% 0.18% 0.10%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) EREEE(TET) 25,169 831 28 26,028
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BHEERE
(F#&T) 25 1 - 26
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18. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other

18. B IR - HARUKER T E

Assets fth & B
2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FET FHET
Prepayments TEFRIAE 2,217 2,317
Contract costs BRI @) 2,912 2,790
Deposits e 11,558 12,253
Deposits paid for the purchase BEYE  WENMLREER
of items of property, plant MEfike
and equipment 4,130 2,995
Other receivables Hfth FEULBR FR 864 502
21,681 20,857
Analysed into: DR
Non-current portion IERBNER 9,540 8,168
Current portion RENEE Y 12,141 12,689
21,681 20,857

Financial assets included in the above balances relate to
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history
of default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2020 and
2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Note:

(a) Contract costs
The contract costs primarily related to the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer, which represent sales commission and bonuses
paid or payable to doctors and staff, that are recognised as contract costs
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the contract liabilities to
which they relate is recognised as revenue.

Management expects that incremental costs paid to doctors and staff as a
result of obtaining prepaid packages are recoverable. The Group has
therefore capitalised these costs as contract costs in the amount of
HK$2,912,000 (2019: HK$2,790,000) at 31 March 2020.

Contract costs are amortised when the related revenue is recognised.
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the amount of amortisation was
HK$6,790,000 (2019: HK$5,523,000) and no impairment loss on contract
costs was made.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Time

19. M LIRS FBYIA N EH

Deposits EHIFE R
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Cash and bank balances RE RIRTTEEER 7,321 11,319
Time deposits TEHRF R 205,466 162,147
212,787 173,466

Less: Pledged time deposits, pledged for & : BHER R EEEE mMER

credit card facilities ME A ERER (55,460) (54,269
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 157,327 119,197

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between 1 month and 12 months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

20. Trade Payables

RITR DS B RITERA R H 0%
DR EBDAE o EHEREARE
BB ELABE—E T EANT
FISARIfE - 3% & M7 SR
AL o RITEB T BRI AN
MRS RERRIFORT -

20. BB RMERK

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Third party suppliers F=HHER 338 1,316

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follow:

REER - BPEAEREERAY
HERBER AT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FET

Within 1 month 1B AR 338 1,316

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have
an average settlement term of 30 days.

ESEMNERERTEE  FHEEH R
A30H -
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21. Other Payables and Accruals 21, Bt ENERALEGTEH
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT
Other payables and accruals Hitb pe R 2k N BT 2 P 5,837 11,769
Receipts in advance TEU R TE 230 490
6,067 12,259
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average HEMERERERTEE  FHEHFHE—=
term of 1 to 3 months. =f@A -
22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22. BB ENREREY S
2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ks FET FET
Deferred revenue IRIEW 2 13,163 22198
Contract liabilities aHa’E @) 122,512 95,859
135,675 118,057
Note: MisE -
(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follow: (@) ERBEFBHOT -
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Advances received from customers BEF#H
Provision of medical aesthetic services RHESEARS 122,323 95,832
Sale of skin care products SHEEEE SR 189 27
Total contract liabilities weEmaE 122,512 95,859
Contract liabilities include advances received from customers to deliver AHBEREARNESE R MIEHESX
skin care products and render medical aesthetic services. The increase in RIRB MU EH R P ET « R2020 FHIA 4
contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to increase in short-term BEENI T EARRBEERARE MRS
advances received from customers for medical aesthetic services. W B Y 58 H A RS2 AN BT BN ©
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22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22. BRBE RS @)
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) s - (48)
(@) (Continued) (@) (&)
The movements in contract liabilities are as follow: BHBENEEHIT
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At the beginning of the year REH] 95,859 75,036
Receipts from sales of one-off treatments HE—REERRER
and treatment packages, net FriSIEF58 189,480 165,676
Revenue recognised upon the provision of services 12 IRT5 14 B HER U 25 (146,165) (138,960)
Revenue recognised upon the sales of products HEEMEBEBRKEGE (6,226) (2,457)
Revenue recognised from unutilised AR EREAENEEZ
prepaid packages e (10,436) (3,336)
At the end of the year RER 122,512 95,859
23. Provision for Reinstatement Costs 23. (BB AT
The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s BEMRAEFEEEEESFE B HRE
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of EMERBURMNASEEENZEHE
dismantling and removing the leasehold improvements and MEREEHEEMEZ RN
restoring the leased premises which they are currently located BARSLE B EREME -
back to their original state of condition if and when the Group
vacates these leased premises.
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT
At the beginning of the year REA) 5,144 2,027
Additional provisions REOMNE AR 766 3,834
Amounts utilised during the year FRNBEEAIEAE - (717)
At the end of the year RER 5,910 5,144
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT
Analysed into: 2kiv=1,
Non-current portion FEmENEB D 4,085 4,711
Current portion mENE D 1,825 433
5,910 5,144
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24. Deferred Tax

24. JRIEFIE
ELRBELERBENENOESHNT -

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follow:

Deferred tax assets EEREEE
Depreciation Losses
in excess available
of related  for offsetting
depreciation against future
allowance taxable profits Others Total
A REESE
BEARTE ARERB
BENTE RN EE Hith @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FET
At 1 April 2018 R20184%4 A 1H 889 - - 889
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERFA/ (B B)BEN
to profit or loss during EERIR (3E10)
the year (note 10) (204 1,518 4 1,318
At 31 March 2019 and R2019F3A31HK
1 April 2019 20194 A1H 685 1,518 4 2,207
Deferred tax credited/(charged) EN A/ (k8 )BRN
to profit or loss during EERIE (3E10)
the year (note 10) 64 912 (4) 972
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31H 749 2,430 - 3,179
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24. Deferred Tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

24, EEFIIE ()
BB EAE

Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
depreciation

B AR ITE
WiTERE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2018 R2018F 4 A1 H 1,385
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FAHK B B EETTE
during the year (note 10) (M5 10) 680
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R2019F 3 A31 B X
20194 A1 H 2,065
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FAFTABRAELER IR
during the year (note 10) (MF5E10) (471)
At 31 March 2020 20203 A31H 1,594
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24. Deferred Tax (Continued) 24, IRIETLTE (4)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) EEBEAE(E)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and 7%@)‘54\%%& ETEEHRBEBEENEE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of REAMBRARILEE - U T ARE
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax l M BRE BN METHIELER B
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: O
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FH&T
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE BB AR ERE
in the consolidated statement of REFRITRE 58
financial position 3,179 1,787
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE B AR ERE
in the consolidated statement of EEHIEAEFE
financial position (1,594) (1,645)
1,585 142
At 31 March 2020, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong MR2020F3A31H  AEBREFEBESL
Kong of HK$14,740,000 (2019: HK$9,215,000), subject to the % B 814,740, OOO}% 70 (20194 -
agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, that 9,215,000/ 7T ) * EBFE BT IS HIRE
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable = AEBAANKEESEBERN
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. N AR IR E SRR A o
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24.

25.

Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$11,000 (2019: HK$11,000) as it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised. In addition, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$21,000 (2019: HK$21,000) for
which deferred tax assets have not been recognised. The

24. IRIEFLIA (%)

A K A] B2 (3R AT B AR B A% IS 1R 3K 8
B FE BR BHO0m A - a3 4R BE B TE B 1B
11,0007 7T (2019 4F : 11,0004 7T) MR
BERMIEEE - W NEB B H AT
REERBEEMN MR G R EERE
21,0007 7L (20194F : 21,0004 7T) © 10

related tax effects are as follow: RAT TS wn
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Tax losses HIEEGE 2 2
Deductible temporary differences AR = K8 3
5 5
Share Capital 25. &7
Shares [} g
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FHETT
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 iz & (&
HK$0.01 each 0.01 BT iRk 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAE :
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,000 f&% & 3% E1E
HK$0.01 each 0.01 B TH) L@ 4,000 4,000

These was no movement in the Company’s share capital during

the year.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in

note 26 to the financial statements.

B
BRAAR DR BB S M F TN I 5

R RARMRALEES -

MR EE26A ©
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26. Share Option Scheme 26. BERRIERTE
The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) AN A HIET — I8 B AT BI( % 5t

for the purpose of attracting and retaining the best available

) EERSILRBREREBAL I

personnel, providing additional incentive to eligible participants,
and promoting the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
Directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, and any consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners and service providers of any member of the Group.
The Scheme was approved and adopted by the shareholders
of the Company on 19 December 2016 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
maximum number of shares available for issue was 40,000,000,
representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company to each participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the total shares of the Company in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such
date on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
Directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the Directors may
determine in granting the option but in any event not exceeding
10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 7 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.0.
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20.

27.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
Directors provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (j)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer; (i)
the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

During the year, the Company did not grant any share options
to any eligible participant under the scheme (2019: Nil).

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein during the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 92 of the
financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents reserves arising from the
reorganisation of the Group in connection with the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange.

20.

27.

B tERTEl ()

BIE Y (TEE O MESEE S H
TEEAELANTRSE ()AL
RGN EL B EER S ERERR
B2 W B ()R ATRPREESY
BHAMAESSBERRAEARES
Fiol 2 TR TE R (i) A A RSB
5> EfE -

BRUER A A B KBRS HERRX

&Rz

FR - ARBLERBEZFBREAE
B2 EER N AR RE (20194 :
&)

(G
REBRRFERBEFENHEHERE
REBRUHRREQANGAESE
DEEVE

R
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28. Related Party Transactions

(@)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had no
material transactions with related parties during the year
(2019: Nil).

28. FET RS

(@)

B2 SIS MR E Ao et sy
R 5 RAERIN  KEBRFENER
BAHMBEEARS(2019F + £) -

(o) Compensation of key management personnel of the by AEEFEEEABNF (B
Group, including Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in BT TSR R MRS T B E F 5 B
note 8 to the financial statements, is as follow: IR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Short term employee benefits HEEE R 6,000 5,665
Post-employment benefits BEER R R 18 72
6,018 5,637
29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 20. IrE R MERMFT
Flows
(@) Major non-cash transactions (@ FEFBEEXRS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group entered
into rental agreements in respect of its office premises.
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$7,543,000
(2019: Nil) were recognised in respect of lease
arrangements for leased properties. Pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the rental agreements, the Group is
required to restore the sites to the conditions as stipulated
in the rental agreements. Accordingly, the Group had also
accrued and capitalised the estimated restoration cost of
HK$766,000 (2019: HK$3,834,000) when such
obligations arose.
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

29. IFERERERM T (@)

(b) EEXEBERMEBNAEEE

activities
2020 2020 £
Lease liabilities
HEEE
HK$’000
T
At 31 March 2019 M 20193 A31H -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 EMABEBMBmELERF16RNTE 56,814
At 1 April 2019 (restated) 20196 4 A1 8 (EEF) 56,814
Changes from financing cash flows REBERSRENE (15,372)
New leases g 7,543
Lease modification HEBH (482)
Finance costs EUp DN 2,211
Interest paid classified as SEERKEERERENENFE
operating cash flow (2,211)
At 31 March 2020 R 20203 A31H 48,503

30. Pledge of Assets

Details of the Group’s credit card facilities granted by financial
institutions, which are secured by the assets of the Group, are
included in note 19 to the financial statements.

30. &AM
MEREERETARENERFEEE
ERmARBAEFLR  AWHER
RE BRI E9 -
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31. Operating Lease Arrangements 31. KEHELHE
As lessee EREEA
The Group leased its medical aesthetic centres, office premises, NREFBRBEESHELHHRAHEREEE
a car park space and certain office equipment under operating DAL PRAEYE EEIERE F i
lease arrangements. Leases for properties were negotiated for REXRE - BEWENZTHEN T —
terms ranging from 1 month to 6 years. Leases for office BAZERF FARLAETRENETH
equipment were negotiated for a term of 5 years. HAREF -
At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease R2019F 3 A31 8 » AEERIE AT H
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as KB E 2 AR R E N RETEH
follow: FIEAE RN
2019
HK$'000
FHET
Within one year —F N 16,659
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF (BIEEEMRT) 44,701
After five years hF® 1,974
63,334
Commitments 32, AHE

32.

(@)

The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

(@) AKERBEHRREATHEAA

=

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Contracted, but not provided for: BEET4) - (BRI -
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 488 275

The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet
commenced as at 31 March 2020. The future lease
payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts are
HK$803,000 due within one year, and HK$876,000 due
in the second to fifth years, inclusive.
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33. Financial Instruments by Category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follow:

33. mEMETMEMIA
RBEHREESBTANREENT -

Financial assets EREE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT F&TT
Financial assets at amortised cost: HBEK AT ENERHEE
Trade receivables H SRR 7,974 26,002
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5 AFERT 3818 « H b e BR 2X
other receivables and other assets LEMEENEREE 12,422 12,755
Pledged time deposits EHEAEHER 55,460 54,269
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBLEEY 157,327 119,197
233,183 212,223
Financial liabilities cRAE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FH&TT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: HHEKAGTENEREAE
Trade payables B IR 338 1,316
Financial liabilities included in other FFAHMENERR R ETER
payables and accruals HEeRAaRE 2,899 6,877
Lease liabilities HEAE 48,503 -
51,740 8,193
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34. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 34. €S TEMAFEELR AFEEE
Instruments &
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial AEESRTAMEEELRATFE(TE
instruments, other than those carrying amounts that reasonably EZEFRAEARATEAEBEEN S/

approximate to fair values, are as follow: TE)WTF
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREIE AEE
2020 2019 2020 2019

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FERT T TR TAT

Financial assets EREE

Deposits, non-current portion %24 » IERENZ D 5,410

5,162 4,564 3,969

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade receivables,
trade payables, the current portion of financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following method and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of non-current portion of deposits are estimated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.

Fair value hierarchy

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no financial
assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Regarding the assets and liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed, the fair value measurement of the non-current
portion of deposits was classified as Level 2. During the year,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and SRiERE IR B E RIBUER

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise pledged
time deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and lease
liabilities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments

AEEFTEem T ARECERTET
FARBERRESEBY AEEBEZ
BHEMeRMEERBE FIMEZEK
ARSR - T ATERT IR « A EU AR &
ﬁ@é?%iﬂé?‘?%ﬁﬁ%%%
REt AEtEMABERERREGEAN SR
aEREEARE-

AEEEBRTANTERBRAFEERR

are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of Directors reviews TEESREM EEeRNTTYRES
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they BEABEREBE - BT E BRI
are summarised below. T

Credit risk EER®K

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 March. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

7N 5 B 5 4 B B2 JE AR K
IEEWE}‘JL’&EEJEZ:EK °

R MASK

RAREBRKFERER
TRHFINENAKENEERRNEER
BExk&AEERR  TEERAHE
#H%#EMQMTE%%H&$%%W
AHENHIERNTES) - RR3A31H
MEFEERERDENT - 2N ERE
BlEEMEEMNBREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020

35. s EMREREBZENBR &)

EERk (&)
BAEKREERE(E)
R 20203 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A&
FEF#B 2HRNEERS
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
BT B N b #@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET TER TERT THERT
Trade receivables* B F MR = = = 8,002 8,002
Financial assets included in STATBFRE -
prepayments, other receivables  E i FEUTBR 2 K
and other assets HEER
PRAE
— Normal ** — EE* 12,422 - - - 12,422
Pledged time deposits BB THER
— Not yet past due — MR 55,460 - - - 55,460
Cash and cash equivalents BERBELEEY
— Not yet past due — HABH 157,327 - - - 157,327
225,200 - - 8002 233211
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 31 March 2019

35. eRiEKRERBIZENMBK®)

EERk (&)
BAERREERE(E)
MR20199F3 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12 8 A8
FEE#E 2HEHREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-TRE FRRE E=RE BIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT TET THET FAT
Trade receivables” B HRBER - - - 26,002 26,002
Financial assets included in BUNSERECER
prepayments, other receivables  E-fh FEUREE T &
and other assets Hith & EH)
PREE
— Normal ** — FE* 12,755 - - - 12,755
Pledged time deposits EERERER
— Not yet past due — AR 54,269 - - - 54,269
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREEED
— Not yet past due — HAREH 119,197 - - - 119,197
186,221 - - 26002 212,223

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 17 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

MASEERERAHOENE SRR
s ABEEMESERNERNSBRE

FRE17 IR -

SHATAENFUR - A b USRS R A M EER
CREERROHK LT EEHERELEY)
HHERARNEERR A REEN - 8
CREENEEERRARIES] BRI

ZETMEENERERWER [F5] -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. @ EtEfREIE B ZENMBUR @)
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk REESERE
In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors and AEBREBESEM  ANEBEBEIERR
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed 2 IR AT ENRENIRESEEY
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations K AAREBRHEEREESITHF
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group KRS RENSNTE KEETHE
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has EHITBESRNARIRE 7 285
adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations. BRETHBEEE -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RIEHAR  NEBEREITLHRITIR
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual MROEREENEERAT
undiscounted payments, was as follow:
2020 2020 F
Within
1 year or 1to5
on demand years Total
-£R
RIRER —-ZRE st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TER TER
Trade payables B SRR 338 - 338
Financial liabilities included in AR A BT RR TR R
other payables and accruals EFERANSREAE 2,899 - 2,899
Lease liabilities HEGE 17,036 34,869 51,905
20,273 34,869 55,142
2019 20194
Within
1 year or 1t05
on demand years Total
—FK
IR EK —ERF #ax
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FAT FTAET
Trade payables B RENER 1,316 - 1,316
Financial liabilities included in S A A FE T BR TR R
other payables and accruals EAERNERAE 6,877 - 6,877
8,193 - 8,193
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and T RlE RS B IR NICR (#)

Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to the shareholders, return capital to the shareholders
or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of the
shareholders’ equity.

REBESER (&)

EXERE
AEBEAEENTIZERARERE
BRELENRENITEFRENERL
FAXFHEEBRAGERANRRE
1A o

AEERBELERNB (L RBEAEED
RREHBEERAREERERE - B4
B ABRERNERE  AEEEAERK
RIS - mRE S HE AR E R
i%’*ﬁ%ﬁﬂxfﬁ o NEBBAEESTEMI
EPEARBENR - REE 202043 A31 B X
20193 AT HIEFE EXREHENE
Z BRI ) o

REBENBEBRERAAMEKED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  36. ANA &) 27 B f& k&
Information about the statement of financial position of the RATRRE RN EANR R E RN

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follow: T
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZRE = -
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables H b B BR 3R 832 398
Pledged time deposits B2 E BT K 52,390 51,214
Cash and cash equivalents HERIESEEY 128,828 81,523
Total current assets MEEERE 182,050 133,135
CURRENT LIABILITIES G =R
Due to subsidiaries NG E O E] 122,068 76,643
Tax payable FE T8 12 12
Total current liabilities MBI BERRE 122,080 76,655
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 59,970 56,480
Net assets BESE 59,970 56,480
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRR A 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note (a)) i (5 () 55,970 52,480
Total equity EmiaE 59,970 56,480
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 36. ZNA &) 7 SR 3E (&)

37.

38.

39.

(Continued)
Note: BfsT -
(@) A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follow: (@) AATIEEOBRENT -
Share
premium Accumulated Total
account losses equity
R4 E R Sy i ERAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2018 R2018%F4 518 67,788 (13,705) 54,083
Loss for the year and total comprehensive — FEE1B M EE 2 S EERE
loss for the year - (1,603) (1,603
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 M2019F 3 A31 A &
201944 B 18 67,788 (15,308) 52,480
Profit for the year and total comprehensive 4 &5 7 & £ & 2 U 35 4248
income for the year - 3,490 3,490
At 31 March 2020 R2020F 3 A31H 67,788 (11,818) 55,970
. . =+ /
Event after the Reporting period  HERRER

The COVID-19 outbreak has had a significant impact on the
economic activities in Hong Kong. The Group’s medical
aesthetic centres in Hong Kong were closed for 28 days for the
period from 10 April 2020 to 7 May 2020 in response to the
regulations of the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administration Region. In view of the dynamic nature of the
circumstances, the overall financial effect of the above cannot
be reliably estimated for the future reporting periods.
Management will continue to closely monitor the development
and evaluate the impact on the Group’s financial position,
financial performance and cash flows.

Comparative Amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the
Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
amounts in the financial statements were not restated and
continued to be reported under the requirements of the
previous standard, HKAS 17, and related interpretations.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of Directors on 15 June 2020.

MEMANBEHESNLCEESESE
BERATE - REBEFAERITTHRBTH
HE AEBNEEBEXAR LR
2020F 4 A10B £2020F5 78 [FH
A28 H - ERBERHOFES (M
B AR S E BB R AR RIR
HFHANEREVBTE EEEHES
BRI ERERTNEEAEENT
i KRB RREMENTE -

38. LEE#EHF

MR M 22T E— T RE - K
SEMN2019F4 A1 BERKETEY
ERMBAYBREERFE 165 - RIE
ZAE MBRENELBRERALES
I WHEERBEATEN TR SR
F1T R LEERENREZ®

39. HLEMIFHRE

PIEHRERDO N 2020F6 A1 HKEES
He B R IR )2 o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFHBERE

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ANHLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FH&T
RESULTS ES
Revenue Wz 176,529 154,695 127,213 100,104 83,352
Profit before tax B B AT v ) 15,669 26,389 31,457 3,509 21,951
Income tax expense FTiSfik X (2,113) (4,591) (4,944) (3,450) (3,463)
Profit for the year and total ~ NA&ES AE(S
comprehensive income for M M FE
the year attributable to FHRGEERE
owners of the Company 13,556 21,798 26,513 59 18,488
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FH&T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BEE 357,251 281,425 223,371 170,623 84,112
Total liabilities wafE (199,020) (139,699) (106,268) (80,033) (65,364)
Equity attributable to owners  ZxA @A A FB1G
of the Company M 158,231 141,726 117,103 90,590 18,748
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